
 

 

 

 

 

 

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, January 21, 2016 

7:00 PM 

 

 

Kathryn Kaminski, President ● Kay Danziger, Vice President ● Anna Gonzales, Secretary 
Dr. Tyson Harrell ● Melisa Roberts ● James Steenbergen ● Frank Torres 



LAMAR CISD BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

BRAZOS CROSSING ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

3911 AVENUE I, ROSENBERG, TEXAS 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

7:00 PM 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to order and establishment of a quorum  

2. Opening of meeting  

3. Student Reports  

A. Arredondo Elementary - "Back to Nature"  

4. Recognitions/awards  

A. George Ranch High School Football State Champions  

5. Introductions  

6. Audience to patrons  

7. Approval of minutes  

A. December 15, 2015 - Special Meeting (Workshop) 6 

B. December 17, 2015 - Regular Board Meeting 12 

8. Board members reports  

A. Meetings and events  

9. Superintendent reports  

A. Meetings and events  

B. Information for immediate attention  

10. Public Hearing - LCISD Accountability Performance Report for 2014 - 2015  

11. ACTION ITEMS  

A. Goal: Planning  

1. Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report 22 

2. Consider approval of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2014 - 2015 year 

29 

3. Consider approval of budget amendment requests 30 

4. Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 32 

5. Consider approval of resolution approving list of qualified investment 

brokers/dealers 

36 

6. Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to: 38 

a. Hutchison Elementary School  

b. Polly Ryon Middle School  

c. Terry High School  

d. Thomas Elementary School  



7. Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2016 39 

8. Consider adoption of 2016 - 2017 Student/Staff Instructional Calendar 41 

9. Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:  

a. Black History Month 43 

b. Career and Technical Education Month 45 

c. School Counselor Week 47 

10. Consider approval of nomination of candidate for position on the Texas 

Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors 

49 

11. Consider designation of Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards' 

(GCAASB) Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee 

58 

12. Consider adoption of the Dean Leaman Junior High School mascot and 

school colors 

60 

13. Consider approval of chiller replacement for Campbell Elementary School 61 

14. Consider approval of traffic engineering study for the new Elementary #25 64 

15. Consider approval of geotechnical study for the new elementary #25 67 

B. Goal:  Personnel  

1. Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2015-2016 school 

year 

74 

12. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. Goal: Planning  

1. Board Policies for First Reading 75 

2. Tax Collection Report 220 

3. Payments for Construction Projects 226 

4. Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 227 

5. Bond Update  

a. 2011 231 

b. 2014 241 

6. Transportation Update 249 

7. Proposed Budget Calendar 250 

8. Possible projects from available 2011 bond funds 252 

9. TASB 2014 - 2016 Advocacy Agenda 253 

10. HB 2610 and Bell Schedules 254 

13. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 

551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the 

following purposes: (Time___________________) 

 

1. Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, 

employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public 

officer or employee. 

255 



a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of 

professional personnel 

256 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 259 

c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 262 

d. Superintendent's Evaluation and Contract  

2. Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, 

lease or value of real property 

 

a. Land  

3. Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in 

which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts 

with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing. 

 

a. Any item listed on the agenda  

b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school 

finance litigation 

 

 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 

 

 Action on Closed Session Items 

 Future Agenda Items 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (Time                             ) 

 

If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the Board should determine that a closed 

session of the Board should be held or is required in relation to an item noticed in this meeting, then such 

closed session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open 

Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour or place given in this notice or as soon after the 

commencement of the meeting covered by this notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed 

session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Section 551.071-

551.084, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to:  

 

Section 551.084 - For the purpose of excluding witness or witnesses from a hearing during 

examination of another witness. 

 

Section 551.071 - For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board's attorney on any or all 

subjects or matters authorized by law. 

 

Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 

property. 

 

Section 551.073 - For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift or 

donation. 

 

Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, 

reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or 

charges against a public officer or employee. 

 





 
 
 

Special Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 
 

The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Special Meeting Held 
 
On this the 15th day of December 2015, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Special Session (Workshop) in 
Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Ms. Kathryn 
Kaminski, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: 
 
Kathryn Kaminski  President 
Kay Danziger   Vice President 
Anna Gonzales  Secretary 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
James Steenbergen  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Laura Lyons   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 

6



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of December 15, 2015 – page 18 
 
2. Discussion of December 17th Regular Board Meeting Agenda Items 
 

The Board reviewed the December 17th Regular Board Meeting agenda items. 
 

 
10. ACTION ITEMS 
 
10. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
10. A-1  Consider approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to: 
   

a. George Ranch High School 
 

Mr. Steenbergen asked how students qualified for this trip.  Ms. Haack said a pre-
registration link was created, which allowed families interested in hosting the Foshan 
students and students interested in traveling to Foshan to register.  A parent 
information night was held, and anyone that was interested in the trip was eligible to 
go.   
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if these are junior or seniors.  Ms. Haack said it is generally 
sophomores and juniors.  This year there are a few freshmen attending, this helps 
create a pool of host families for the following year.     
 
Ms. Gonzales asked how many years this program has been in place.  Ms. Haack 
said they are entering their third year.  Ms. Gonzales asked if this program will be 
expanded to the students at the other high schools.  Ms. Haack said yes, as the 
program is expanded, seats will open for the other schools.  Dr. Randle said Foster 
High School will be working with Twain.   
 

 
10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
10. B-4  Consider approval of an Order Authorizing the Issuance of Lamar Consolidated  
  Independent School District Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016; approving 
  the preparation of an official statement; and enacting other provisions relating thereto 
 

Mr. Steenbergen said he saw nothing that links this back to the actual bond election.   
Ms. Ludwig said the 2007 and 2008 bond covenants are where this authorization  
exists to refund bonds.  This is strictly a refinancing transaction, it is a refunding of the 
Series 2007 and 2008 bonds. 
 
Ms. Roberts asked for an explanation.  Ms. Ludwig said we will issue bonds that 
basically replace the old bonds at a lower interest rate which creates a savings.  Mr. 
Palmer said they look at outstanding bonds and look for an opportunity to refinance.  
He said right now we have bonds in the 5% range and the new bonds will be in the 
3.5% rate.  This one and half percent of savings translates into debt service savings.  
We are hoping to save $20 million in present value savings and about $30 million in 
gross savings over time.  Ms. Roberts asked when we did this last.  Ms. Ludwig 
answered in 2015.   
 
Ms. Gonzales stated the 3.5% is not certain; the verbiage says it could go up to 4.5%.  
Mr. Palmer said the 3.5% is not for certain.  LCISD will not be in the market until early 
January and interest rates could increase.  If rates move dramatically (increase or 
decrease), they will come back to the Board.   

7



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of December 15, 2015 – page 19 
 
Ms. Roberts asked if there is a limit of how often refinancing can occur.  Mr. Palmer 
said that a school district’s ability to issue tax exempt bonds is a privilege provided to 
it by the Federal Government, and they do put a lot of restrictions on how many times 
they can be refinanced.  An advance refunding can only be done one time.   
 

10. B-5  Consider approval of behavior/autism program software support 
 

Dr. Harrell asked if we are changing our program or adding to it. Ms. Leach said this 
is a new program in which a RFP was issued.  The plan is to begin small and expand 
the program.   
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked what the funding source for this purchase is.  Ms. Leach said 
it will be from Federal funds. 
 

10. B-6  Consider approval of instructional materials, equipment, supplies, and related items 
 
Ms. Roberts asked if this is an as needed bid.  Ms. Leach said yes, our existing bid 
only consisted of about 40 vendors, the new list consist of 410 vendors.   
 

10. B-8  Consider approval of renewal of charter bus services 
 

Mr. Steenbergen asked why AFC was so much higher than the rest, and if they 
provide something specific above the others.  Ms. Leach said it is based on their 
availability and timing.  AFC has a contract with the University of Houston and the 
rodeo, sometimes they are a little more difficult to schedule.  She said they wanted a 
variety of companies to select from, especially when times become busy with playoff 
games, etc.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked when we use a charter bus.  Dr. Randle said typically outside a 
100 mile radius.  He said we were fortunate recently that most of the playoff games 
were at home.  Any time they travel to San Antonio, Waco, etc. we try to use charter 
buses and all the kids are bused on charter buses.   
 

10. B-9  Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to: 
a.  Foster High School 
b.  Frost Elementary School 
c.  Hubenak Elementary School 
 
Mr. Steenbergen asked how we regulate memorials.  Dr. Randle said there is not a 
policy, but typically these have been addressed as they come up.   
 

10. B-11 Consider approval of architect ranking for three high school practice pools 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if with the approval of the rankings, this gives permission to start 
negotiations with the first ranked architect.  Dr. Randle said that is correct.  She also 
asked if it is the same for the three highs schools.  Dr. Randle said it is the same 
architect.   
 

10. B-13 Consider approval of architect ranking for the Satellite Agriculture Barn #3 
 

Ms. Roberts asked for clarification that the architect ranking changes from the pools.  
Dr. Randle said yes.   
 
 

8



 
Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of December 15, 2015 – page 20 
 
10. B-16 Consider approval of new bus purchase  
 

Ms. Kaminski asked if these buses will be air conditioned.  Dr. Randle said yes.  She 
asked about the seat belt law.  Mr. Jones said the law that was passed several years 
ago stated seat belts had to be on the buses if the state gives you the money, and the 
state has not given the District any money.  Mr. Jones said the smaller buses with the 
lifts do have lap belts installed.  Ms. Kaminski asked what is the most number we 
have on a lift bus.  Mr. Jones said it would not approach 39, it is normally called a 53 
passenger bus because of the number of rows of seats.  It is rated based on total 
number of seats in the bus plus the wheel chair location.  He said this bus gives them 
room and flexibility; and the bigger bus is a safer bus. 
 
Ms. Danziger asked if these buses are being purchased by the 2014 bond and was it 
in the bond for them to be air conditioned.  Mr. McKeever said yes it is from the 2014 
bond and it was not stated. 
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if this is becoming the trend in Texas to go to air conditioned 
buses.  Mr. Jones said that it is, the suppliers do not stock a bus without an air 
conditioner.   
 

10. B-17 Consider approval of purchase agreement with Nevco, Inc. for the baseball  
  scoreboard at Foster High School 

 
Ms. Kaminski asked if we install scoreboards when we build new schools.  Dr. Randle 
said we do and this is a replacement.   

 
10. B-19 Discussion and action on a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for future schools 
 

Ms. Danziger thought this was supposed to just gather information and not an action 
item.  Ms. Roberts said if it was the one she asked to be on the agenda, she wanted 
just a discussion on where we are for future schools, not necessarily a RFQ.  Mr. 
Steenbergen said this probably came from something he asked about at a previous 
board meeting.  He said the last time we RFQ’d our architects for the school 
complexes was 2006, he believed it was time to go back to the market to RFQ the 
architects.  Ms. Roberts was wondering what the action item would be.  Dr. Randle 
said this was the interpretation of what the board wanted, this does not mean you 
have to take any action, it just has to be listed that way if the Board wishes to take 
action.  Dr. Harrell clarified this is to see what our options are to have another RFQ 
for future projects.  Mr. Steenbergen said yes.   

 
11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. D GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. D-6 Bond Update 
 

Mr. Steenbergen said the uncommitted funds totaled almost $6 million and is this the 
money we will be able to apply to new projects after approved by the Board.  Ms. 
Ludwig said yes.   
 

  

9



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of December 15, 2015 – page 21 
 

11. D-7 Transportation Update 
 
Mr. Steenbergen said he appreciated the report and wanted to put a positive spin on 
this to help advertise for transportation.  He said when you look at the student  
discipline, it sounds bad because there have been 312 discipline referrals in 
November.  But if you calculate the number of student trips, approximately 660,000 
student movements; we only had 312 issues out of 660,000.  Percentage wise this is 
not bad.  Dr. Randle said sometimes we lose sight of how much interaction we have 
with students on a day-to-day basis and the success they have.  He said our 
transportation department works really hard.   
 

11. D-8 Naming New Schools 
 
Ms. Kaminski asked why we do all of this now if we do not have the locations of all 
the schools.  She said people in different areas may have a special reason for 
submitting a name in a specific area, but we do not know where these schools are 
going to be located right now.  Mr. Rockwood said that is correct.  Historically the 
Board has looked at this as a district not a location.  He referenced Mr. Leaman who 
the Junior High in the Fulshear area will be named after; he was a well-represented 
member of Lamar CISD.  He said that historically the Board has reviewed names at 
one time because it gives everyone in the community an opportunity to bring forward 

nominations and the board looks at this all at once.  Otherwise you might name one 

this month and then a few months later another school needs to be named.  This just 
consolidates the process and allows you to get all the information at one time.  Ms. 
Kaminski asked if the nominations are designated for a certain numbered school.  Mr. 
Rockwood said they are designated for a preference, like an elementary, middle, 
junior high, or high school.  The nominee has options to where they want the Board to 
look in placing those nominations.  Dr. Randle said the people making the 
nominations will come to the public hearing and share with the Board why they think a 
school should be named after a particular individual.   
 

11. D-9 Demographic Report Review 
 
Ms. Roberts asked if we will have a demographer in the near future.  Dr. Randle said 
they will be here in February and they give an overall update at this time.   

 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION  PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional 
personnel 

b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Superintendent's Evaluation 
e. Reassignment of professional personnel (Information) 
f. Consider employment of Campus Coordinator for Fulshear High School 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land  
 

10



Minutes of the Special Board Meeting of December 15, 2015 – page 22 
 

3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the 
duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional  
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including 
the grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 7:11 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 
 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
Kathryn Kaminski     Anna Gonzales 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 
 

11



 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

Be It Remembered 
 

 
The State of Texas      §  
County of Fort Bend      § 
Lamar Consolidated Independent School District § 
 
Notice of Regular Meeting Held 
 
On this the 17th day of December 2015, the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District of Fort Bend County, Texas met in Regular Session in Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM 
 
This meeting was duly called to order by the President of the Board of Trustees, Ms. Kathryn 
Kaminski, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: 
 
Kathryn Kaminski  President 
Kay Danziger   Vice President 
Anna Gonzales  Secretary 
Tyson Harrell   Member 
Melisa Roberts  Member 
James Steenbergen  Member 
 
Members Absent: 
 
Frank Torres   Member 
 
Others Present: 
 
Thomas Randle  Superintendent 
Kevin McKeever  Administrator for Operations 
Jill Ludwig   Chief Financial Officer 
Laura Lyons   Executive Director of Elementary Education 
Leslie Haack   Executive Director of Secondary Education 
Kathleen Bowen  Chief Human Resources Officer 
Mike Rockwood  Executive Director of Community Relations 
David Jacobson  Chief Technology Information Officer 
Valerie Vogt   Academic Administrator 
Rick Morris   Attorney 
 
BUSINESS TRANSACTED  
 
Business properly coming before the Board was transacted as follows: to witness— 
 
2.         OPENING OF MEETING 
 
The prayer was led by Ms. Lyons, and the pledge of allegiance was recited. 

12



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 24 
 
3. STUDENT REPORTS 
 

a. Board Bites - Culinary Arts 
 
Mr. Garrett introduced the Culinary Arts department and student representatives from three 
of our four high schools:   

Terry High School – Teacher, Trudy Townsend with Paulina Barajas, Miranda Jimenez, 
and Alberto Resendez 

 George Ranch High School – Teacher, Julie Waumsley with Nicholas Castillo 
Foster High School – Teacher, Jocelyn Aventurado with Elliott La Fleur, Adrianna 
LaMothe, and Caelan de Villiers 

 
4. RECOGNITIONS/AWARDS 
  

None 
 

5. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 None 
 
6. AUDIENCE TO PATRONS 
 
 Joe Greenwell thanked the Board for their service they give to the District.  He said he noticed 

in the agenda the Board is going to accept the ranking of the architects for the swimming pools 
and that the ranking and matrixes were presented to the Facilities Committee on December 
2nd.  He said the information is not publically available.  He asked how the public knows if any 
of the companies have ever built any pools.    He reminded the Board they do not have to go 
with the top ranked architect.  He feels too much of one vendor providing things will lead to 
corruption.  He said if everything is awarded to PBK, the District does not inspire competition 
because the outsiders know there is no reason to compete.  He said he has information from 
one of the largest swimming pool companies in the country that builds pools for municipalities 
and school districts across the state, and they will not deal with this District because they think 
it is rigged.   

 
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. NOVEMBER 17, 2015 SPECIAL MEETING (WORKSHOP) 
 
 It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Gonzales that the Board of 

Trustees approve the minutes of November 17, 2015 Special Meeting (Workshop).  
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
B. NOVEMBER 19, 2015 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 
 It was moved by Ms. Gonzales and seconded by Dr. Harrell that the Board of Trustees 

approve the minutes of November 19, 2015 Regular Board Meeting.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
8. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
 

a. Meetings and Events 
 
 

13



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 25 

 
Ms. Roberts reported the Attendance Boundary Committee met.  She reported the Board 
will have the opportunity to approve the ABC Committee that will determine boundaries 
between Huggins, Hubenak, and Elementary #24.  The process is similar to the past.   
 
Ms. Danziger reported the Facilities Committee met.  She reported on the status of 
projects going on throughout the District.   
 
All Board members did a cheer for the George Ranch Longhorns. 
 

   
9. SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 

 
a. Meetings and Events    

   
Dr. Randle said he is very proud of our kids and all of our schools supporting the 
school that is in the state finals.    

 
b. Information for Immediate Attention 

 
 

ACTION ITEMS FOR CONSENT OF APPROVAL:  10. A-1; 10. B-1 - 10. B-10; 10. B-12 – 10. B-15; 
10. B-17 – 10. B.18; and 10. B-20 
 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Mr. Steenbergen that the Board of Trustees approve 
these action items as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
10. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 

 
10. A-1 Approval of out-of-state student trip requests, including, but not limited to: 

 
a. George Ranch High School  

 
approved out-of-country travel for George Ranch High School students and staff to 
travel to Foshan, China from January 2 – 16, 2016 
   

10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
10. B-1 Approval of budget amendment requests 
 

approval of budget amendment requests as attached.  (See inserted page 25-A.) 
 
10. B-2 Ratification of Financial and Investment Reports 
 
  ratified the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
10. B-3 Renewal of delinquent tax attorney contract 
 

approved the renewal of the contract with the law firm of Linebarger Goggan Blair and 
Sampson, LLP (“the Firm”) for delinquent tax attorney services for a three-year period 
beginning January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 2018 with automatic one-year 
renewals unless terminated by the District or the Firm.  (See inserted pages 25-B – 25-
G.) 

14



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 26 

 
10. B-4 Approval of an Order Authorizing the Issuance of Lamar Consolidated  
  Independent School District Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016;  
  approving the preparation of an official statement; and enacting other provisions  
  relating thereto 
 

approved the Order Authorizing the Issuance of Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016.  (See inserted pages 26-
A – 26-FF.) 

 
10. B-5 Approval of behavior/autism program software support 
 

approved Rethink Autism Inc. for behavior and autism program software support for the 
District at a cost of $52,500.  (See inserted pages 26-GG – 26-PP.) 
 

10. B-6 Approval of instructional materials, equipment, supplies, and related items  
 

approved all vendors who responded to the proposal for instructional materials, 
equipment, supplies, and related items for the District. 
 

10. B-7 Approval of digital knowledge central interlocal agreement for digital resources 
 

approved a Region 20 interlocal agreement for 2015-2016 digital resources through 
their Digital Knowledge Central program.  (See inserted page 26-QQ) 
 

10. B-8 Approval of renewal of charter bus services 
 
approved the renewal (for Year 3) of Bid #34-2013 to Sam’s Limousine and 
Transportation, Inc., Sierra State Coaches, Inc., A Ambassador Limousine & 
Transportation, and AFC Transportation. 
 

10. B-9 Approval of Donations to the District, including, but not limited to: 
 

a. Foster High School 
b. Frost Elementary School 
c. Hubenak Elementary School 
d. Jackson Elementary School 
 
approved donations to the district with addendum. 
 

10. B-10 Approval of architect ranking for the support services facility 
 

approved the ranking of architects and authorize the Superintendent to begin contract 
negotiations for architect services for the Support Services Facility. 

 
10. B-12 Approval of architect ranking for the Terry High School baseball complex  
  renovations 
 

approved the ranking of architects and authorize the Superintendent to begin contract 
negotiations for architect services for the Terry High School Baseball Complex 
renovations. 

  

15



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 27 
 
10. B-13 Approval of architect ranking for the Satellite Agriculture Barn #3 
 

approved the ranking of architects and authorize the Superintendent to begin contract 
negotiations for architect services for the Satellite Agriculture Barn #3. 

 
10. B-14 Approval of architect ranking for the Lamar Consolidated and Terry High  
  School band hall expansion 
 

approved the ranking of architects and authorize the Superintendent to begin contract 
negotiations for architect services for the band hall expansion at Lamar Consolidated 
High School and Terry High School. 
 

10. B-15 Approval of new sidewalk project at Polly Ryon Middle School 
 

approved Facilities Sources for the installation of a new sidewalk from Polly Ryon 
Middle School to Antoinette Reading Junior High in the amount of $44,400. 

 
10. B-17 Approval of purchase agreement with Nevco, Inc. for the baseball scoreboard at 
  Foster High School 
 

approved Nevco, Inc. for the installation of the baseball scoreboard at Foster High 
School in the amount of $27,450.   
 

10. B-18 Approval of CenterPoint blanket easement for the new elementary #24 
 

approved the CenterPoint Energy blanket easement for the installation of overhead 
and underground service for the new Elementary #24.  (See inserted pages 27-A – 27-
J.) 
 

10. B-20 Approval of Attendance Boundary Committee 
 

approved the membership of the Attendance Boundary Committee (ABC) for 2015-
2016 as presented with the proposed timeline using the LCISD Zoning Process, and 
charge the ABC with setting the boundaries for Elementary #24 for the 2016-2017 
school year. 
 

 
10. B GOAL:  PLANNING 

 
10. B-11 Consider approval of architect ranking for three high school practice pools 
 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Ms. Gonzales that the Board of 
Trustees approve the ranking of architects and authorize the Superintendent to begin 
contract negotiations for architect services for the practice pool facilities at Fulshear 
High School, Foster High School, and George Ranch High School. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen said his concern is that in February we are about to do a 
demographic report which could cause the Board to reshuffle the priorities of the 
projects.  He is concerned that we will get so far along with the practice pools when in 
fact we may want to shuffle something and put another elementary school further up on 
the priority list.   
 
 

16



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 28 
 

Ms. Roberts agreed and said waiting for the demographer report would not delay the 
pools in any way.  There may be a situation where our schools are overcrowded. 
 
Ms. Danziger said we are only going to negotiations, this does not have anything to do 
with working with who will actually build them. 
 
Mr. Steenbergen said his understanding is once we approve the architect then they are 
allowed to start their design work and interviews.  His concern was he did not want to 
get too much work committed if in fact we have to reprioritize and shuffle projects.   
 
Ms. Leach said even if this is approved today there is a long term of negotiating 
contracts and legal process.  No work will begin until a purchase order is done.  We are 
simply asking for an approval of the ranking.  This opens the door and allows the 
District to begin if this is decided that it is needed.  The District will have to come back 
to the Board to proceed.  This is still in our control.  This industry is so busy right now, 
the District tries to lock down architects, engineers, contractors, and sub-contractors as 
quickly as possible.  Mr. Rice said it would be his recommendation for the Board to 
approve tonight because programing needs to be done for all of these schools, he said 
this will take a few months to accomplish.  If the demographer report indicates 
something else then the pools can be halted.  Dr. Randle reminded the Board that 
when we go to the voters and tell them we are going to do something, we follow 
through on that. We will be going back to the voters soon.  If we change what we told 
the voters we would build, then we do not build that, we will lose credibility.  Mr. 
Steenbergen said he is not asking to remove the pools, he is just saying we might need 
to shuffle priorities under the current Bond.   
 
Dr. Harrell asked what costs the District will incur during the programming phase.  Mr. 
Rice said it is minor in comparison to the full architecture fee for preparation of the 
contract documents.   
 
Ms. Roberts asked about the programming, what are they looking as a cost estimate 
for the pools.  Mr. Rice said the Bond allocated a little over $7 million for the 
construction costs.  Allowing them to move forward with the program will help them 
identify how much pool can the District afford for that money.  Ms. Roberts would like to 
see options for the pools, she is not necessarily looking to spend the $7 million on 
pools.   
 
Mr. Steenbergen said the evaluations had nothing to do with the $7.5 or $8 million 
pool; those were the people who had the capability of building swimming pools of all 
ranges.  It was on the basis of providing a facility, basically designed per the 
requirements of the District and different peoples input.   
 
Ms. Roberts said her point is she does not feel like we need to spend all that money on 
the pools.   
 
Dr. Randle said the whole goal is to create something that is efficient for our kids and 
that we have squeezed the budget as much as possible.   
 
Ms. Kaminski said she is getting the idea that the swimming pools were the priority and 
when the committee came to the Board before the Bond election, they never 
mentioned the pools.  As far as the community choosing the swimming pools, it was 
the Board who did that.  Her concern is the elementary schools needs to be built first.   
 

17



 
 

Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 29 
 

Ms. Danziger said she has been contacted from Foster High School parents wanting a 
pool at the campus due to the distance.  She has been looking at it for the fourth grade 
swim program as well.  We are building elementary schools so far north and south it 
takes time to get the students into town to swim.  If the practice pools are built, they 
can be used.  She agrees the elementary schools are needed as well.  She would like 
to have some practice pools in place so the fourth graders and those students in the 
swimming program would not have to travel so far.  It is up to the Board to decide 
which pool to build and which is most cost effective.   
 
Ms. Leach reminded the Board that we are not really building right now we are 
designing.  This will give the Board some numbers to work with.   
 
The motion carried unanimously.   

 
10. B-16 Consider approval of new bus purchase  
 

It was moved by Dr. Harrell and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of Trustees 
approve Thomas Bus Sales for the purchase of 42 new 77-passenger buses and 12 
new 39-passenger lift buses in the amount of $4,954,070. 
 
Ms. Kaminski asked if they have a plan in place as to who gets the new air conditioned 
buses.  Mr. Jones said they will look at the length of the routes and the length of time 
the students are on the bus.  He said they will split them between the different tracks 
so that some of the air conditioned buses go to each of the school tracks.  Ms. 
Kaminski asked how many additional buses were purchased because of the new 
schools.  Mr. Jones said some of the new buses are for growth and some are just 
replacement for older buses.   
 
The motion carried unanimously.   

 
10. B-19 Discussion and action on a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for future schools 
 

Ms. Roberts said for the last few elementary schools we have had PBK as the architect 
and she understands there is a design that is basically a rubber stamp from one 
elementary school to the next with a few variations.  She would like to know if the 
District owns the design or if it is owned by the architect.  She said a few months ago 
she asked what we are paying for the design since it is not new anymore.  The answer 
was that the price was 2-3% in comparison to 7-8%.  She asked if that is one of the 
reasons we have not done a RFQ for an architect for elementary schools in a long 
time.  Mr. McKeever said this was done in 2006.  Mr. Steenbergen asked why we are 
not doing a RFQ again.  Dr. Randle said the only reason we have replicated most of 
our schools with tweaks is because you are typically saving around $400,000 per 
school.  Over the years we have saved about $6 million on architectural fees alone.   
 
Ms. Danziger asked what happens if we do an RFQ, we separately do our rankings, 
and it ends up to still be who we have been using.  She asked if we are obligated to go 
to the design they showed or if we can use the design we had been using.  Mr. 
Steenbergen said that the process reaffirms that we have the right company.  
 
Dr. Randle said he is not opposed to going through the process, but he wants it to go 
on record because it is easy to say how bad things have been with no data.   
 

18



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 30 
 

Dr. Harrell asked what the cost of an RFQ is to the District.  Ms. Leach said the 
expense is fairly minimal.  She said what we have enjoyed about this design concept is 
the equitability.  It makes it easy for her department to pull numbers together quickly to 
see what it will cost to put furniture in the school.  It is easy for Kevin’s team to estimate 
what the HVAC system is going to cost us.  The appearances are the same throughout 
the schools.   
 
Mr. Morris informed the Board that it looks like the administration is looking for some 
guidance; therefore, if it is the will of the Board, then it is appropriate for the Board to 
take action.  It will be clear that a majority of the Board supports moving forward with 
the issue. 
 
It was moved by Mr. Steenbergen and seconded by Ms. Roberts that the Board of 
Trustees authorize the Purchasing Department to issue a RFQ for the primary school 
architect contracts.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
11. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. A GOAL:  INSTRUCTIONAL 
 
11. A-1 2015 Highly Qualified Teacher Report 
 
 
11. B GOAL:  COMMUNICATIONS 
 
11. B-1 School Board Recognition Month 
 

(See inserted page 30-A.) 
 
11. C GOAL:  PERSONNEL 
 
11. C-1 Report on Board Member Training 
 

As of this date, the following Lamar CISD Board members have met or exceeded 
required continuing education hours: 

 

   Current Accumulated Total 
 
  Kay Danziger  36.25 67.00   103.25 
  Anna Gonzales 21.00 38.75     59.75 
  Kathryn Kaminski 48.50 66.75   115.25 
  Tyson Harrell        23.50 
  Melisa Roberts       31.50 
  James Steenbergen       33.50 
   Frank Torres  3.00 10.00     13.00 
 
11. D GOAL:  PLANNING 
 
11. D-1 Stewardship Report 
 

Dr. Randle informed the Board the administration is presenting the 2015 stewardship 
report.  The report has served as a tool to report on the overall activities, results, and  

19



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 31 
 

outcomes of district operations.  The report summarizes the results and activities since 
January 2015 and highlights major LCISD accomplishments.  With more than 30,000 
students at 39 campuses, our District is one of the fastest growing school districts and 
the second largest employer in Fort Bend County.  In 2015, the District and every 
campus achieved the highest possible ratings as part of the Texas Education Agency 
accountability system, which is “Met Standards”.  This report contains information 
regarding academic improvement, financial strength and organizational excellence.  
Some of the highlights that will be discussed during the report will be the District having 
met standard designation, approved a balanced budget, maintain the same low tax rate 
for fifth consecutive year, named as one of only 425 school districts in the United 
States and Canada to the 6th Annual AP Honor Role, and selected as the upcoming 
cover story in the January 2016 issue of Texas School Business magazine  

 
11. D-2 Lamar Educational Awards Foundation (LEAF) Update 
 
11. D-3 Tax Collection Report 
 
11. D-4 Payments for Construction Projects 
 
11. D-5 Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update 
 
11. D-6 Bond Update 
 
11. D-7 Transportation Update 
 

Ms. Roberts asked if exit interviews are conducted when we have resignations.  Dr. 
Bowen said we do an electronic form all employees of the district.  Ms. Roberts said 
she noticed we hired two and lost two, she was wondering if an exit interview would be 
helpful to determine why they are leaving.  She is being told that moral is still low in 
transportation. 

 
11. D-8 Naming New Schools  
 
11. D-9 Demographic Report Review 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 
SECTIONS 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, AND 551.082, THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT, FOR THE 
FOLLOWING PURPOSES: 
 

1. Section 551.074 – For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, 
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or 
to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee. 

a. Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel 
b. Employment of professional personnel (Information) 
c. Employee resignations and retirements (Information) 
d. Superintendent’s Evaluation 
e. Reassignment of professional personnel (Information) 
f. Consider employment of Campus Coordinator for Fulshear High School 

2. Section 551.072 – For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value 
of real property 

a. Land 
 

20



 
Minutes of Regular Board Meeting December 17, 2015 – page 32 
 

3. Section 551.071 – To meet with the District’s attorney to discuss matters in which the duty 
of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of  
the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including the 
grievance/complaint hearing. 

a. Any item listed on the agenda 
b. Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance 

litigation 
 
The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:50 p.m. for the purposes listed above. 
 
 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION – ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board reconvened in Open Session at 9:24 p.m. 

 
12. A-1(a) Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional  
  personnel 
 

It was moved by Ms. Danziger and seconded by Dr. Harrell that the Board of Trustees 
approve personnel as presented with addendum.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 

  Employed 
 
  Lowery, Kayse TBD  Assistant Principal    
       George Ranch High School 
 
12. A-1(f) Consider employment of Campus Coordinator for Fulshear High School 

 
It was moved by Ms. Roberts and seconded by Ms. Danziger that the Board of  
Trustees approve the recommendation of William Oschlor Flemming as the Campus 
Coordinator for Fulshear High School.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 Information Item on a listing of potential projects to use the uncommitted funds 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:26 p.m. 
 
 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
              
Kathryn Kaminski     Anna Gonzales 
President of the Board of Trustees  Secretary of the Board of Trustees 

21



 
 

 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT 
 

SEPTEMBER 2015 THROUGH NOVEMBER 2015 
 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees ratify the quarterly investment report as submitted for the 
quarter ending November 30, 2015. 
 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
This report is required by state law and local policy CDA and includes all the pertinent 
information regarding the District’s current investments.  Investment officers for the 
District will be present at the meeting to answer any questions about the report and the 
District’s cash and investment position.  
 
 
Submitted by:   Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
                         Yvonne Dawson, Budget and Treasury Officer                        
                         Michele Reynolds, Director of Finance  
                        
  
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

11.A.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT 

SCHOOL DISTRICT COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT  
FOR THE 2014 - 2015 YEAR 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2014-2015 fiscal year 
as presented. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
A draft of the Lamar CISD Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
2014-2015 fiscal year is enclosed for your review.  This report is comprised of three 
sections. The introductory section includes district information and a letter of 
transmittal.  The financial section includes the auditors’ report, various financial 
reports and notes, and required supplementary information.  The last section includes 
unaudited statistical trend data to better help the user of the financial statements to 
understand the economic conditions under which the District operates. 
 
A representative of Whitley Penn, LLP will be present to comment on the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and respond to any questions. 
 
 
Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
              Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance  
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 

11.A.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

29



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT REQUESTS 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of budget amendment requests as 
attached. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The proposed budget amendments require school board approval because budgeted 
funds are being reallocated between functional categories and/or new budgets are 
being established.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Budget amendments are mandated by the state for budgeted funds reallocated from 
one functional level, and state and/or federal project to another.  These budget changes 
are usually the result of unexpected levels of expenditures in certain categories and 
amendments are for legal compliance. Other budget amendments are determined by 
the School Board.   
 
Since the operating budget for Lamar CISD is adopted at the functional level, budget 
revisions are required for reallocations between functional levels or when new budgets 
are being established. All necessary budget amendments must be formally adopted by 
the School Board and recorded in the Board minutes.  (TEA Financial Accountability 
System Resource Guide, Financial Accounting & Reporting, Update 15.0) 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
Resource:       Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget and Treasury Officer   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 

11.A.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

30



 
 
 
Lamar Junior High is requesting a budget change for new band director to attend in-
service. 
 
199-11 Classroom Instruction (500.00) 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development 500.00 
 

 
The Accelerated Language Programs department is requesting a budget change to hire 
consultant for Pre-K training. 
 
199-11 Classroom Instruction (6,000.00) 
199-13 Curriculum and Instr. Staff Development 6,000.00 
 

 
The Business Office is requesting a budget change to amend the budget to purchase 
two chillers for Campbell Elementary. 
 
199-81 Facilities Acquisition & Construction 327,000.00 
 

 
The Curriculum Department is requesting a budget change to amend the budget to 
include funding for the Summer School Now Program.  The additional funding will 
benefit all campuses and target students at risk of failing. 
 
199-11 Classroom Instruction 340,000.00 
  
  

31



 
 
 

CONSIDER RATIFICATION OF FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT REPORTS 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Board of Trustees ratify the Financial and Investment Reports as presented. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 

Financial reporting is intended to provide information useful for many purposes.  The 
reporting function helps fulfill government’s duty to be publicly accountable, as well as to 
help satisfy the needs of users who rely on the reports as an important source of 
information for decision making.  

Financial reports and statements are end products of the reporting process.  You will 
find attached the following reports: 

 Ratification of December 2015 Disbursements, all funds 

o List of disbursements for the month by type of expenditure 

 Financial Reports 

o Year-to-Date Cash Receipts and Expenditures, General Fund only 

o Investment Report 

 

Submitted by:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Recommended for ratification: 
 

Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

  11.A.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

32



SCHEDULE OF DECEMBER 2015 DISBURSEMENTS 
 

 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
All disbursements made by the Accounting Department are submitted to the Board of Trustees for ratification on a 
monthly basis.  Disbursements made during the month of December total $25,845,249 and are shown below by 
category: 
 

 

3-Digit Object Description Disbursements

611/612 Salaries and Wages, All Personnel 14,381,854         

614 Employee Benefits 638,191

621 Professional Services 301,060

623 Education Services Center 78

624 Contracted Maintenance and Repair Services 357,523

625 Utilities 140,285

626 Rentals and Operating Leases 26,908

629 Miscellaneous Contracted Services 558,261

631 Supplies and Materials for Maintenance and Operations 245,889

632 Textbooks and Other Reading Materials 139,844

633 Testing Materials 484

634 Food Service 540,637

639 General Supplies and Materials 1,261,621

641 Travel and Subsistence -- Employee and Student 80,075

649 Miscellaneous Operating Costs/Fees and Dues 535,615

661 Land Purchase and/or Improvements 2,450

662 Building Purchase, Construction, and/or Improvements 6,342,580

663 Furniture & Equipment - $5,000 or more per unit cost 212,635

129 Misc. Receivable/Alternative Certification Fees 6,600

131 Inventory Purchases 16,862
217 Operating Transfers, Loans and Reimbursements 582

573/575/592 Miscellaneous Refunds/Reimbursements to Campuses 55,215

Total 25,845,249
 

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The report above represents all expenditures made during the month of December 2015. The detailed check 
information is available upon request. 
 

                                        
  

33



LAMAR CONSOLIDATED I.S.D.
GENERAL FUND

YEAR TO DATE CASH RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015
 

PERCENT
AMENDED BUDGET ACTUAL/

CASH RECEIPTS BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET

5700-LOCAL REVENUES 136,159,713.00 67,274,543.00 (68,885,170.00) 49.4%

5800-STATE PROGRAM REVENUES 96,167,598.00 45,952,347.00 (50,215,251.00) 47.8%
  

5900-FEDERAL PROGRAM REVENUES 1,745,000.00 842,867.00 (902,133.00) 48.3%

7900- OTHER RESOURCES - 655,704.00 655,704.00

TOTAL- REVENUES 234,072,311.00 114,725,461.00 (119,346,850.00) 49.0%

EXPENDITURES

6100-PAYROLL COSTS 196,017,515.00 59,033,387.00 136,984,128.00 30.1%
 

6200-PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED SVCS. 16,305,061.00 4,091,543.00 12,213,518.00 25.1%
  

6300-SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS 12,732,738.00 3,014,551.00 9,718,187.00 23.7%
  

6400-OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 9,867,050.00 3,258,541.00 6,608,509.00 33.0%
  

6600-CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,677,786.00 526,964.00 1,150,822.00 31.4%

TOTAL-EXPENDITURES 236,600,150.00 69,924,986.00 166,675,164.00 29.6%

34



35



 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION APPROVING LIST OF QUALIFIED 
INVESTMENT BROKER/DEALERS 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees consider approval of the attached resolution approving a list 
of qualified investment broker/dealers. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
In compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act, Section 2256.025 of the Texas 
Government Code, the Board of Trustees shall review, revise, and adopt a list of 
qualified investment broker/dealers that are authorized to engage in direct investment 
transactions with the District.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
Funds are currently on deposit with the District’s depository bank and the following 
approved investment pools: 
 
 Texpool   TexStar 
 LoneStar   TexasTerm/Daily 
 MBIA, Texas CLASS 
 
The District intends to continue using the currently authorized investment pools. In 
addition, investment officers plan to expand the District’s investment program to include 
the purchase of individual securities from those on the list of approved broker/dealers. 
These securities will include only those authorized by the District’s investment policy 
(see attached excerpt from Board Policy CDA (Local), section entitled “Approved 
Investment Instruments”). 
 
 
Submitted by: Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
                       Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget and Treasury Officer   
                       Michele Reynolds, CPA, Director of Finance 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

11.A.#5. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

36



RESOLUTION 
 
 
WHEREAS, Section 2256.025, Texas Government Code, as amended, requires the 
governing body of the local government to review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified 
investment brokers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions with the 
District, and 
 
WHEREAS, BOSC, Inc., Citigroup Global Markets, Coastal Securities, JP Morgan 
Securities, Mesirow Financial, Morgan Stanley, Piper Jaffray & Co., Raymond James, 
Stifel, Nicolaus & Co., and Wells Fargo Securities, and authorized investment pools 
(Texpool, LoneStar, MBIA Texas CLASS, TexStar, and TexasTerm/Daily), hereinafter 
referred to as the investment pools”, may engage in investment transactions with Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School District, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District 
wish to adopt the investment brokers as qualified investment brokers that are authorized 
to engage in investment transactions with the District as required by Section 2256.025, 
Texas Government Code; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of Lamar 
Consolidated Independent School District that the investment brokers are approved as 
qualified investment brokers that are authorized to engage in investment transactions 
with the District as required by Section 2256.025, Texas Government Code, as 
amended. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, this the 21st day of January 2016. 
 
 
                                                  LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT                                                                               
                                                                                         SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
                                                   By:_______________________________ 
                                                           Kathryn Kaminski   
                                                           President, Board of Trustees 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
        Anna Gonzales 
        Secretary, Board of Trustees 

37



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF DONATIONS TO THE DISTRICT 
 
 
 

RECOMMEDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve donations to the District. 
 

 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Policy CDC (Local) states that the Board of Trustees must approve any donation with a 
value in excess of $2,500. 
 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Hutchison PTA donated $5,312 for field trips for Hutchison Elementary School. 
 
Ryon Community Organization donated $4,079 to furnish and install high performance 
window film and window treatments in the cafeteria to be used for theatrical productions, 
etc. at Polly Ryon Middle School. 
 
Westheimer Lakes POA donated $5,400 in support of the JROTC at Terry High School.   
 
Thomas Elementary PTO donated $35,009.13 to purchase a backstop, soccer goals, 
outdoor classroom, shade structure, and tables for Thomas Elementary School. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

  11.A.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF BOARD CALENDAR FOR 2016 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Board of Trustees approve the proposed Board Calendar for 2016. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The Board of Trustees has major responsibilities and activities at certain times during   
the year. This calendar outlines a timeline for when these major responsibilities and 
activities should occur. Upon approval, this calendar will be followed unless the Board  
President and Superintendent agree upon changes. 
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 11.A.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

39



 
LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD CALENDAR 

2016 

 

January  Audit Report 

  Hearing on AEIS Report 

  School Calendar 

  Superintendent’s Evaluation 

 

March Administrative Contracts  

  

April Employee Contracts 

 

May Graduations 

   

June Budget Workshop 

 

July Superintendent’s Formative Conference 

 Monitor Progress of District Goals 

 Budget Workshop 

 

August Board Member Training Report 

 Budget Workshop 

 Public Hearing on Budget 

 Budget Adoption for 2016 – 2017 

 Teacher Appraisal Calendar 

 Current Year Final Budget Amendments 

 Public Hearing on Tax Rate 

 Adoption of Tax Rate for 2016 

 

September District Improvement Plans 

 Campus Improvement Plans 

 School FIRST Report 

 

October Board/Superintendent Team Building 

 

December Board Member Training Report 

 

40



       
 
 
 

CONSIDER ADOPTION OF 2016-2017 STUDENT/STAFF 
INSTRUCTIONAL CALENDAR 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the student/staff instructional calendar (attached) for 2016-2017, 
as recommended by the District-wide Student Improvement Council (DSIC). 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
At a meeting held on November 4, the DSIC—a district-wide committee of teachers, parents, 
community members and administrators—reviewed two calendar proposals developed by the 
administration. The DSIC members were asked to discuss the two proposals with their campus 
staff/communities and to submit any new recommendations. One additional recommendation was 
submitted. The District also adjusted one of its options based upon feedback from the November 
DSIC meeting.  
 
The DSIC met on January 13 and Calendar Option C was the option selected to bring to the Board for 
approval with 35 votes. Option A received 14 votes. Option B received 4 votes. Those favoring Option 
C expressed a desire to have a full week off at Thanksgiving and preferred not to have two staff 
development days immediately following the Winter Break.  
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The calendar presented for adoption is based on the instructional requirements of the District and 
follows state legislative guidelines. The administration will review before adding six/nine weeks begin 
and end dates, early release days, grading periods and non-work days.    
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

 

  11.A.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

41



© ©

           1      2      3       4       

 5      6      7       8      9      10      11      

12      13    14      15     16     17      18    

19     20    21     22   23    24    25   

26   27     28     

                                             1       

    2       3      4      5     6      7      8      

    9      10     11      12    13     14    15     

    16     17     18     19   20    21   22   

    23   2      25    26  27    28  29   

Grading Periods 

  ELEMENTARY (K-5) & MIDDLE SCHOOL 
(6)  GRADING PERIODS

First Semester: xx Instructional Days
1st Nine Weeks: 
2nd Nine Weeks:  

Second Semester: xx Instructional Days
3rd Nine Weeks: 
4th Nine Weeks: 

     SECONDARY (7-12) GRADING PERIODS
First Semester: xx Instructional Days

1st Six weeks:  
2nd Six Weeks: 
3rd Six Weeks: 

Second Semester: xx Instructional Days
4th Six Weeks: 
5th Six Weeks: 
6th Six Weeks: 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL DAYS - 176

S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R

A
P

R
IL

F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
J

U
N

E
M

A
R

C
H

M
A

Y

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
A

U
G

U
S

T
J

U
L

Y

3911 Avenue I, Rosenberg, Texas 77471
832.223.0000  •  832.223.0002 (Fax)  • www.lcisd.org

Instructional 
Calendar

©

s
(( ))

Student and Staff Holiday
Staff Development and Student Holiday
Workday/Student Holiday
Six/Nine Weeks Begins/Ends
New Teacher Staff Development Day
Teacher DMA Day and Student Holiday
Bad Weather Make-Up Day (if needed)
Workday Make-Up Day (if needed)
Early Release Day (K-5) - 11:30 a.m.
Early Release Day (6-12) - 11:30 a.m.

Staff Development & 
Student Holidays

August 8 -10 (New Teachers)
August 11-12, 15-18, January 2,

February 20, April 14

Student & Staff 
 Holidays

• Labor Day
• Fort Bend Fair Day
• Thanksgiving Break
• Winter Break
• MLK Day
• Spring Break
• Easter Break 
• Memorial Day
• Independence Day

Sept. 5
Sept. 23

Nov. 21-25
Dec. 19-30

Jan. 16
Mar. 13-17

April 17
May 29

July 4

2016-2017

23
  30

24
  3123

  30

 S    M    T     W   T    F    S 

 S    M    T    W   T    F     S 

 S    M    T    W    T    F    S 

 S    M    T    W    T    F    S  S    M    T    W   T    F    S 

 S    M    T    W   T    F    S  S    M    T    W    T    F    S 

 S    M    T    W    T    F    S  S    M    T    W   T    F    S 

 S    M    T     W   T    F    S  S    M    T    W   T    F    S 

 S    M    T    W   T     F    S 

24
 /31

23
 /30

s

©

                  1       2         

 3       4       5      6      7    8     9     

10       11      12     13     14     15    16     

17       18     19    20    21     22  23   

24    25    26   27   28    29  3024
 /31

s s

                              1       2      3       

 4       5       6     7       8     9      10      

 11       12     13    14     15     16     17      

 18     19    20   21     22    23   24      

 25   26   27  28     29    30   

     1       2      3      4       5     

6       7       8      9     10      11      12    

13     14      15    16     17      18     19   

20    21     22   23   24    25   26    

27    28    29   30

   1       2     3      4        

  5       6      7      8      9     10     11       

  12     13     14     15     16    17     18      

  19     20   21     22   23   24   25    

 26    27   28    29   30    31

                                1          

 2       3       4      5      6      7      8         

 9      10      11      12     13     14     15       

16      17     18      19    20   21     22   

23    24    25    26   27   28    29     
23
 /30

       1       2       3     4      5     6       

  7       8      9      10    11      12    13      

 14      15     16     17    18     19   20       

 21     22    23    24  25   26   27        

28    29    30    31

DSIC Recommendation 1-13-16

©

                                  1      2      3        

  4       5       6       7      8     9     10     

  11       12      13     14     15    16    17       

  18     19      20    21    22   23   24     

  25   26     27    28   29   30   31 

                     1      2       3       

 4       5      6      7      8     9      10       

 11      12     13     14     15    16     17     

18     19     20    21    22   23   24   

25   26   27    28   29   30   

 1       2      3     4       5      6       7      

8      9      10     11       12     13     14    

15     16    17     18      19    20    21    

22   23   24   25    26   27    28   

29   30   31   

       1       2        3     4      5      6         

  7       8      9       10    11      12     13      

  14     15     16      17    18     19    20     

  21     22   23    24   25    26   27    

  28   29   30    31

42



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
BLACK HISTORY MONTH 

 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming February 2016 
as “Black History Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

National Black History Month is celebrated during February each year to recognize the 
rich heritage and significant contributions of persons of African-American heritage, both 
past and present. 
 
Lamar CISD schools plan a wide variety of special activities to observe Black History 
Month during February. 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations  
 
 
 
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

  11.A.#9a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

43



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, Black History Month is celebrated throughout the 

United States during the month of February; and 

WHEREAS, Black History Month recognizes the rich heritage 

and significant contributions to our lives by African-Americans; and 

WHEREAS, schools are in a unique position to share an 

appreciation of the heritage and accomplishments of African-

Americans among children from all races and backgrounds; and 

WHEREAS, Lamar CISD schools commemorate Black History 

Month with special activities and observances; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Trustees of the 

Lamar Consolidated Independent School District declare February 

2016 as Black History Month in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 

School District and encourage members of our community to share in 

this celebration of American heritage. 

 
Adopted this 21

st
 day of January, 2016. 

 

 
 
       Kathryn Kaminski, President 
 

 
 
       Anna Gonzales, Secretary 

44



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING  
CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION MONTH 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming February 2016 
as “Career and Technical Education Month” in the Lamar Consolidated Independent 
School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
The growing Texas population is becoming less rural, more global and more diverse. 
Our students need to be aware of, and prepared for, all opportunities in the work place. 
Specialized training is imperative. The knowledge necessary for a skilled-labor force in 
Texas starts with Career and Technical Education (CTE) at the secondary level. 
 
Knowing that CTE plays a critical role in student development, proclaiming February 
2016 as “Career and Technical Education Month” will provide the community with a 
clear statement that CTE is valued and very important in the Lamar CISD. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
From a beginning with a limited number of vocational training programs, CTE has 
evolved into a broad system encompassing a variety of challenging fields. CTE features 
diverse subjects that are constantly evolving due to a changing global economy. 
Today’s CTE provides students: 
 

 Academic subject matter taught with a relevance to the real world; 

 Employability skills, from job-related abilities to workplace ethics; 

 Career pathways that link secondary and post-secondary education; and 

 Education for training related to workplace training, skill upgrades and career 
advancement. 

 
For the fall of 2015, Lamar CISD had approximately 5,528 students participating in CTE 
courses from grades 7-12.  
 
 
Submitted by: Joel Garrett, Director of Career and Technical Education 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent   

11.A.#9b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 
 

45



Resolution 
 

WHEREAS, the Association for Career and Technical Education has designated 

February 1-29, 2016 as Career and Technical Education Month; and 

 

WHEREAS, profound economic and technological changes in our society are 

reflected in the structure and nature of work, placing new and additional 

responsibilities on our educational system; and 

 

WHEREAS, career and technical education provides a career connection and is the 

backbone of a strong, well-educated workforce, which fosters productivity in 

business and industry and contributes to America’s leadership in the international 

marketplace; and 

 

WHEREAS, career and technical education gives high school students experience in 

practical, meaningful applications of skills such as reading, writing and mathematics, 

improving the quality of their education, motivating potential dropouts and giving all 

students leadership opportunities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ever-increasing cooperative efforts of career and technical 

educators, business and industry stimulate the growth and vitality of our local 

economy and that of the entire nation by preparing graduates for careers that are 

expected to experience the largest and fastest growth in the next decade; 

 

THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Board of Trustees of the Lamar Consolidated 

Independent School District declare February 1-29, 2016 as Career and Technical 

Education Month and urge all citizens to become familiar with the services and 

benefits offered by career and technical education programs and to support these 

programs to enhance work skills and productivity. 

 

 

Adopted this 21st day of January, 2016. 

 

             

Kathryn Kaminski, President 

 

 

 

       Anna Gonzales, Secretary 
 

46



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION PROCLAIMING 
SCHOOL COUNSELOR WEEK 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the attached resolution proclaiming the week of 
February 8 – 12, 2016 as "School Counselor Week" in the Lamar Consolidated 
Independent School District. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Professional counselors are valuable members of the educational teams in schools.  
They contribute to the development of children through guidance, counseling, 
consultation, coordination, assessment, and program management. 
 
School counselors also work with parents, teachers, administrators, and the community 
to optimize student learning. They are important resource persons in understanding and 
responding to student behavior. 
 
School counselors respond daily to crises in students' lives. These crises include  issues 
such as suicide, abuse, drug and alcohol use, pregnancy, and family problems. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
 
 
Recommended for Approval: 
 

 
 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

  11.A.#9c. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

47



Resolution 

WHEREAS, School Counselors help students in public and private schools 

to reach their full potential; and  

WHEREAS, School Counselors are committed to helping students explore 

their abilities, strengths, interests and talents as these traits relate to career 

awareness and development; and 

WHEREAS, School Counselors help parents focus on ways to further the 

educational, personal and social growth of their children; and 

WHEREAS, School Counselors work with teachers and other educators to 

help students explore their potential and set realistic goals for themselves; 

and  

WHEREAS, School Counselors identify and utilize community resources 

that enhance and supplement comprehensive school counseling programs 

and help students become productive members of society.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Trustees of the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District recognize the importance of 

school counseling programs, which are an integral part of the educational 

process that enables all students to achieve success in school and declare 

the week of February 8 – 12, 2016 as School Counselor Week in the Lamar 

Consolidated Independent School District.  

Adopted this 21st day of January, 2016.   

Kathryn Kaminski, President 

 

 

       Anna Gonzales, Secretary 

48



 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF NOMINATION OF CANDIDATE FOR POSITION ON THE 
TEXAS ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS (TASB) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMEDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the nomination of ________________________ for 
Position A on the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors. 

 
 

IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
In November 2015, Region 4, Position A, on the TASB Board became vacant when Ron 
Crier was not reelected to the Spring ISD Board.  This vacancy may be filled by the 
TASB Board until the next Delegate Assembly in 2016.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The TASB Board of Directors is charged with carrying out the policies established by 
the Delegate Assembly of the Association. The individual Director is expected to attend 
five meetings of the Board each year with one of the meetings being at the same time 
as the annual state convention in the fall.  In addition, the Director will be asked to serve 
on a standing committee that will meet on an as-needed basis, normally in conjunction 
with a Board meeting.  
 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 

 11.A.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

49



 
 

 
 
 
January 6, 2016 
 
Dear Board Presidents, Superintendents, and Superintendent Secretaries, Region 4 
 
This is a reminder that your local board has been invited to submit a nominee to fill the interim 
positon for TASB Region 4 on the TASB Board of Directors.  
 
Region 4, Position A, on the TASB Board recently became vacant when Ron Crier was not 
reelected to the Spring ISD Board. This vacancy may be filled by the TASB Board until the next 
Delegate Assembly in 2016.  
 
A TASB Director represents his or her region on the Board, guiding the organization in fulfilling 
its mission to provide advocacy, visionary leadership, and high-quality services to you, our 
members.  
 
If your local school board would like to nominate a candidate to fill this interim position, please 
follow the attached instructions and complete and return the attached forms. Nominations 
must be received in the TASB Headquarters no later than Friday, March 4, 2016. If you  
have questions or need further information, please contact Sheri Hicks at 800.580.8272, ext. 
2800.  
 
We appreciate your participation in TASB’s governance process and your ongoing commitment 
to Texas public schools! 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Andra Self 
TASB Nominations Committee Chair 

 

50



INSTRUCTIONS FOR TASB BOARD NOMINATIONS 
 

About the TASB Board of Directors 
  
The TASB Board of Directors is charged with carrying out the policies 
established by the Delegate Assembly. The individual Director is expected to 
attend four Board meetings of the Board with one of the meetings being at the 
same time as the annual TASA/TASB Convention. In addition, the Director will be 
asked to serve on a standing committee that will meet as needed in conjunction 
with Board meetings. The Director should be a capable, experienced school 
board member who can assist in providing the Association with outstanding 
leadership. 

 

How to Nominate a Candidate to the TASB Board 
 

To nominate an individual from your local school board, please complete the 
following attached forms:  

A. Active member's nomination and candidate’s willingness to serve 
B. Nominated individual's biographical information 
C. Candidate questionnaire  

 
The completed materials must be received in the TASB Austin office no 
later than Friday, March 4, 2016. Nominations that do not meet the deadline 
cannot be accepted. 
 
TASB will e-mail the nominated individual and the superintendent a confirmation 
that the forms have been received.  
 
If an acknowledgment is not received, contact Sheri Hicks or Susan Tabbee at 
800.580.8272, ext. 3573, or susan.tabbee@tasb.org.  
 

The Next Steps 
 

The candidate will be introduced to the Nominations Committee at its meeting on 
Thursday – Friday, March 31 - April 1 at the TASB Headquarters in Austin. 
Immediately after the nominations period closes, candidates will be notified 
of their interview times.  
 
If you have questions or need further information, please contact Sheri Hicks or 
Susan Tabbee at 800.580.8272, ext. 3573, or susan.tabbee@tasb.org.  
 
We appreciate your participation in this nomination process. 

51

mailto:roberta.austin@tasb.org
mailto:roberta.austin@tasb.org


v. 12/2015 

 TASB NOMINATION FORM 
 
This is to serve as the nomination of a member of our local board to fill a position on the TASB Board of 
Directors. 
 

CANDIDATE INFORMATION 

NAME:  _____________________________________________________________________________  

SCHOOL DISTRICT:  __________________________________________________________________  

MAILING ADDRESS:  __________________________________________________________________  

CITY:  ________________________________________________  ZIP:  ________________________  

 
Our school district's board of trustees understands: 

1. Expenses incurred for the candidate to attend the Nominations Committee interview will be the 
responsibility of the candidate’s local school district. 

2. The local board’s nomination of one of its trustees shall be considered the district’s endorsement for 
that Director position. 

3. A TASB Director’s attendance at regular TASB Board meetings is important. 
4. Lodging and transportation expenses incurred by TASB Directors attending regular spring, summer 

and December Board meetings are reimbursed by the Association and transportation expenses and 
three nights’ lodging incurred attending the Convention Board meeting are reimbursed by the 
Association.   

 
This nomination was approved by our board of trustees at a duly called meeting on _________________. 
           (Date) 
  
 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
 (Signature of board president or officer) 
 
NAME:  _____________________________________________________________________________  

SCHOOL DISTRICT:  __________________________________________________________________  

MAILING ADDRESS:  __________________________________________________________________  

CITY:  ________________________________________________  ZIP:  ________________________  

 
WILLINGNESS TO SERVE (To Be Completed By The Candidate)  
 
I, __________________________, confirm my willingness to serve, if elected, as a member of the 
TASB Board of Directors for Region ____, Position ____. 
 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
 (Signature of candidate) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORM A 

This form is to be used to nominate a member of your Local Board as a 
candidate to fill a position on the TASB Board of Directors. 
 
Must be received in the TASB Austin Headquarters on or before 
MARCH 4, 2016. 

 
RETURN TO:  TASB, Inc. 
 Attn: Board and Management Services 
 P.O. Box 400 
 Austin, Texas 78767-0400 
 E-mail: susan.tabbee@tasb.org 
 FAX: 512.467.3554 
 

52



 

v. 12/2015 
 

 TASB BOARD CANDIDATE BIOGRAPHICAL SKETCH 
 
TODAY’S DATE: ____________________________  

NAME:              

ADDRESS:              

CITY:          ZIP:       

BUSINESS PHONE:       RESIDENCE PHONE:       

CELL PHONE:       FAX NUMBER (if applicable):      

 
We communicate with our Board members primarily via e-mail and the Internet. Please list your preferred 
active email address. 
  
E-MAIL:             

SCHOOL DISTRICT:             

LOCAL TERM EXPIRES:       YEARS ON BOARD:      

                                      (Month/year) 
 
Upon expiration of current term on your local board, will you seek reelection? 

Yes____  No____ 

 

BOARD POSITIONS HELD/DATES: ______________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

OCCUPATION: _______________________________________________________________________  

CURRENT EMPLOYER: ________________________________  Dates: ________________________  

EDUCATION-HIGH SCHOOL: ___________________________  COLLEGE: _____________________  

OTHER EDUCATION:  _____________________  DEGREES: ________________________________  

HOBBIES/SPECIAL INTERESTS: ________________________________________________________  

BUSINESS/PROFESSIONAL/CIVIC GROUP MEMBERS (Offices held and dates): _________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS (Use reverse side if additional space is required.):  _____________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Please attach a short bio and include a current picture in jpeg format.  

 

Additional Comments: (Use reverse side if additional space is required.)  

FORM B 

53



 

v. 12/2015  Page 1 of 4 

 TASB BOARD CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
NAME: ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT: __________________________________________________________________  
 
POSITION: __________________________________________________________________________  
 
I affirm that my board has approved my candidacy, and the Nominations Form has been submitted to 
TASB (or is included in this mailing) as evidence. 
 
 

1. What motivates you to serve on the TASB Board? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2. What contributions can you make? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Service as a TASB Director is a very rewarding experience, but it is a time-consuming endeavor. 

Please address your commitment to serve as a Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

FORM C 

54



 

v. 12/2015  Page 2 of 4 

4. Please provide evidence of your leadership abilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. If selected, what are some unique characteristics or perspectives you bring to the Board? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Describe the characteristics of a good board member. What are at least three or four behaviors of a 

good board member? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

55



 

v. 12/2015  Page 3 of 4 

7. Use of technology is required of a TASB Director to communicate and to use and view Board 

materials. Please explain the skills and knowledge you possess in using technology. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8. Describe a critical or serious challenge that you have faced on your local school board and tell us 

how you helped to solve it. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Excluding public school finance, what do you think are top issues facing public education today?  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Elaborate on why you think they are critical issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

56



 

v. 12/2015  Page 4 of 4 

10. Additional information: What else would you like for us to know about you? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
(Signature of candidate) 
 
________________  
(Date) 
 
 

 

 
 

This form is to be used by a candidate interested in filling a position on the  
TASB Board of Directors. 
 
Must be received in the TASB Austin Headquarters on or before  
MARCH 4, 2015 
 
RETURN TO:  TASB, Inc. 
 Attn: Board and Management Services 
 P.O. Box 400 
 Austin, Texas 78767-0400 
 E-mail: susan.tabbee@tasb.org 
 FAX: 512.467.3554 
 

57



   
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER DESIGNATION OF GULF COAST AREA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL 
BOARDS’ (GCAASB) POSITIVELY PROMOTING PUBLIC SCHOOLS COMMITTEE   

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Board of Trustees designate _________________________ to work with Gulf 
Coast Area Association of School Boards’ (GCAASB) Positively Promoting Public 
Schools Committee. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 

The GCAASB Executive Board determined that since public education is under attack 
from the legislature, taxpayers, and even parents, a broader, unified and positive effort 
must be undertaken by all school districts in the Gulf Coast area.  While local school 
districts and their school board and administrative leadership team are to be 
commended on their efforts to promote public education in their respective 
communities, the GCAASB Executive Board has seen that county-wide and region-wide 
efforts, like the “Go-Public!” campaign in Bexar County, provide another and stronger 
voice when actions are unified.   
 
 
Recommended for approval: 
 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

 11.A.#11. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

58



Following is the information requested regarding the Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee: 
  
The Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards Executive Board has determined that since public 
education is under attack from the legislature, taxpayers, and even parents, a broader, unified and 
positive effort must be undertaken by all school districts in the Gulf Coast area.  While local school 
districts and their school board and administrative leadership team are to be commended on their efforts 
to promote public education in their respective communities, the GCAASB Executive Board has seen that 
county-wide and region-wide efforts, like the "Go Public!" campaign in Bexar County, provide another and 
stronger voice when actions are unified. 
  
Each school board is asked to designate one of its members to attend a meeting of the Positively 
Promoting Public Schools Committee to determine how the GCAASB can develop that broad, unified and 
positive effort to promote public education throughout the Gulf Coast area.  That meeting will be held in 
the latter half of February at Region 4 ESC.  Tentatively, sub-committees will be formed to focus on 
specific efforts, and the number of sub-committee meetings and location of those meetings will be 
determined by the sub-committee members.  It is anticipated that the efforts will not be limited to just 
school boards, but will involve the cooperation and participation of superintendents, public information 
staff, and other public education supporters. 
  
The name, mailing address, e-mail address, and best contact telephone number of the Board-designated 
trustee is to be e-mailed to GCAASB Executive Secretary Jerry Smith at GCSchoolBoards@aol.com by 
not later than Friday, January 29 so that the organizational meeting can be scheduled. 
  
GCAASB Director Bob Covey, who is a member of the Cypress-Fairbanks ISD Board of Trustees, is 
chairing the Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee. 
  
Should you require additional information, please contact Mr. Covey at 713-304-2274 or Mr. Smith at 832-
722-0213. 
  
Jerry Smith, Executive Secretary  
Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards 
20015 Legend Oak Dr., Humble, TX 77346-1746 
832-722-0213 
GCSchoolBoards@aol.com  
Proud of Our Public Schools!!! 

 

59

mailto:GCSchoolBoards@aol.com
mailto:GCSchoolBoards@aol.com


 

CONSIDERATION ADOPTION OF THE DEAN LEAMAN JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL  
MASCOT AND SCHOOL COLORS 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Chargers as the mascot and purple and black as 
the school colors for Dean Leaman Junior High campus.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Sharing the same mascot – determined by student feedback – provides a symbol 
representing the school community.  This, in turn, builds a sense of belonging.  “Once a 
Charger, always a Charger.” Students entering Dean Leaman Junior High campus will 
see themselves as “Chargers” and carry that into Churchill Fulshear Jr. High School. 
Current schools that employ this philosophy are George Ranch High School 
(Longhorns), Southlake Carroll (Dragons), Katy High School (Tigers), Needville (Blue 
Jays), and El Campo (Ricebirds).  
 
 
Submitted by:       Dan Ward, Principal, Churchill Fulshear Jr. High School 
         Michael Semmler, Principal, Dean Leaman Junior High 
         Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

  11.A.#12. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2015 

60



 
CONSIDER APPROVAL OF CHILLER REPLACEMENT FOR  

CAMPBELL ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Texas Air Systems for the purchase and installation 
of two (2) 210 ton chillers for Campbell Elementary School in the amount of $327,400 
and amend budgets as necessary.  
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
The procurement method is an interlocal contract with TIPS-USA Purchasing 
Cooperative. (Contract # 1032615)  The current two (2) 210 ton units are failing and are 
requiring attention daily. The chillers were installed in 2000, at original construction. 
Both chillers are experiencing coil corrosion, compressors leaking internally, and the 
computer boards are obsolete. The lead time to purchase a new chiller is approximately 
eight weeks. This will allow installation during spring break 2016.   
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Upon approval Texas Air Systems will begin the process to install the new chillers at 
Campbell Elementary.   
 
 
Submitted by: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Aaron Morgan, Director of Maintenance & Operations (Region 4) 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 

  11.A.#13. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

61



62



63



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF TRAFFIC ENGINEERING STUDY 
FOR THE NEW ELEMENTARY #25 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Traffic Engineers, Inc. for the traffic engineering study 
for the new Elementary #25 in the amount of $13,000. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
The traffic engineering study is a professional service that the District must contract 
directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
The traffic engineering study will generate reports that provide traffic flow patterns the 
architect needs to complete the construction specifications. These reports are crucial in the 
design and construction of the new Elementary #25. 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

 

  11.A.#14. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

64



 

Traffic Engineers, Inc. 

 Innovative Transportation Solutions 

801 Congress Voice (713) 270-8145 
Suite 325  Fax (281) 809-0807 
Houston, TX 77002 www.trafficengineers.com 

Texas Registration Number F-003158 

 

The Team You Can Depend On 

January 8, 2016 
 
Mr. Kevin McKeever 
Administrator of Operations  
Lamar Consolidated ISD 
3911 Ave I 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
  
Re: Proposal for Traffic Study for LCISD Elementary School #25 
 
Dear Mr. McKeever: 
 
This letter constitutes our proposal to conduct a Traffic Study for the proposed LCISD 
Elementary School #25 located at the northeast corner of South Firethorne Drive and Joan 
Collier Trace.  
 
Scope of Services 
 
Task 1 – Data Collection 
Traffic Engineers, Inc. will conduct 24-hour traffic counts at the following locations: 
 

 South Firethorne Drive, east of Joan Collier Trace 

 Joan Collier Trace, north of South Firethorne Drive 
 
The following information will be provided by LCISD/PBK: 
 

 Year school will open 

 Arrival and dismissal times 

 Number of students 

 Number of staff 

 Number of buses (regular routes and special needs) 

 Number of day care vans 

 Names of existing schools that generate approximately the same amount of parent 
traffic expected to be generated by the future Elementary School #25  

 Approximate attendance zone  
 
A site visit will be conducted to collect pertinent information for the study. Traffic Engineers, 
Inc. will observe dismissal at the existing school(s) identified by LCISD that generate 
approximately the same amount of parent traffic expected to be generated at the future 
elementary school. The total number of parents and the maximum queue of parents will be 
used to determine the amount of on-site stacking needed at Elementary School #25. 
 
 
 

65



Traffic Engineers, Inc. 

   

  

 The Team You Can Depend On Page 2 of 2 
 

Task 2 – Trip Generation and Distribution 
The amount of traffic expected to be generated by Elementary School #25 will be estimated 
based on the information obtained from LCISD/PBK in Task 1 and data collected at the 
existing schools.   
 
The traffic volumes will be distributed to the following intersections: 

 South Firethorne Drive and Joan Collier Trace 

 Joan Collier Trace at Student drop-off/pick-up driveway 

 South Firethorne Drive at Bus/staff driveway 
 
Task 3 – Traffic Impact Analysis 
The school site plan will be evaluated with respect to on-site traffic circulation. The amount 
of on-site storage needed for the student drop-off/pick-up area, the bus loading/unloading 
area and staff parking lot will be analyzed.  
 
Traffic projections will be developed for Build-out conditions for the opening year of the 
elementary school  assuming ultimate enrollment with portable buildings.  
 
The impact of the school generated traffic on the adjacent roadways will also be analyzed to 
ensure adequate off-site circulation.  
 
Task 4 - Study Findings 
A report will be prepared documenting the findings and recommendations for on-site and off-
site circulation. The study will be submitted to the City of Fulshear and Fort Bend County. 

Compensation and Schedule 
Based on our estimate of hours required to complete this project, compensation of $13,000 is 
proposed on a lump sum basis.    
 
A draft report will be submitted to LCISD/PBK for review by March 7, 2015.  
 

Please contact me at (713) 446-4442 or at susan@trafficengineers.com if you have any 
questions regarding this proposal.   
 
 

Sincerely,      Accepted by:     
              
 
Susan H. Alleman     ____________________________________ 
Principal      Name 
 
        
       _____________________________________ 

Signature 
 
 
       Date ________________________________ 

66

mailto:susan@trafficengineers.com


CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GEOTECHNICAL STUDY 
FOR THE NEW ELEMENTARY #25 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve Terracon, Inc. for the geotechnical engineering 
services for the design of the new Elementary #25 in the amount of $6,100. 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONAL: 
 
Geotechnical Engineering Services are a professional service that the District must 
contract directly. These funds were allocated within the 2014 Bond Budget. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Geotechnical services will generate reports that provide foundation design criteria the 
architect needs to complete the construction specifications. These reports are crucial in 
the design and construction of the new Elementary #25. 
 
 
 
Submitted By: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
 Steve Hoyt, Vanir/Rice & Gardner Consultants, Inc., A Joint Venture 
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 
 
 

  11.A.#15. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



 
 
 
 
 

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF NEW APPRAISERS FOR  
TEACHING STAFF, 2015-2016 SCHOOL YEAR 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Trustees approve the 2015-2016 appraiser(s) who have recently become 
certified or are new to Lamar Consolidated Independent School District (LCISD). 
 
 
IMPACT/RATIONALE: 
 
Rules adopted by the State Board of Education indicate that the local District Board of 
Trustees must approve appraisers other than the teacher’s supervisor. 
 
 
PROGRAM DESCRIPTION:  
 
Listed below are staff members who are new to LCISD or have recently become certified as 
appraisers for the 2015-2016 school year. 
 

Kayse Lowery 
   
Submitted by: Dr. Kathleen M. Bowen, Chief Human Resources Officer  
 Courtney Beard, Personnel Specialist                                          
 
 
Recommended for approval: 

 
Dr. Thomas Randle 
Superintendent 
 

  11.B.#1. – PERSONNEL 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

74



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM: BOARD POLICIES -- FIRST READING 
 
 
The following local policies are attached for review: 
 
 •   Localized Policy Manual Update 102 
 •   Localized Policy Manual Update 103 
  

Local policies are customized to provide a procedure or guidelines to enforce the legal 
policies and district guidelines. 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
 
 

 12.A.#1. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TAX COLLECTION REPORT 
(AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015) 

 
 
 
Exhibit "A" gives the LCISD collections made during the month of  

December 31, 2015. 
 
Exhibit "B" gives the total LCISD collections made this school year from September 1, 

2015 through August 31, 2016. 
 
Exhibit "C" shows the LCISD collections made month-by-month of the 2015-16 roll as 

compared to prior years.  Through December 31, 2015, LCISD had 
collected 49.0 % of the 2015-16 roll. 

 
Exhibit "D" shows the total collections made as compared to the amount that was 

budgeted for 2015-2016. 
 
Exhibit "E" shows the LCISD tax collection analysis for the last six years. 
 
 
 

Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 

12.A.#2. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

220



Exhibit A
Lamar Consolidated ISD

Tax Collections
December 2015

 
General Fund Debt Service

Taxes Penalty & Collection Total General Fund P & I & Debt Service P & I &
Year Paid Interest Fees Payments Taxes Paid Collection Fees Taxes Paid Collection Fees

15 $ 82,397,968.89 $ - $ - $ 82,397,968.89 $ 61,651,025.48 $ - $ 20,746,943.41 $ -
14 $ 78,864.82 $ 19,105.40 $ 19,995.85 $ 117,966.07 $ 59,007.51 $ 34,290.60 $ 19,857.31 $ 4,810.65
13 $ 50,902.16 $ 5,608.12 $ 4,023.47 $ 60,533.75 $ 38,085.48 $ 8,219.55 $ 12,816.68 $ 1,412.04
12 $ 31,156.69 $ 1,945.30 $ 970.67 $ 34,072.66 $ 23,311.76 $ 2,426.17 $ 7,844.93 $ 489.80
11 $ 30,030.34 $ 1,244.22 $ 395.81 $ 31,670.37 $ 22,036.98 $ 1,308.81 $ 7,993.36 $ 331.22
10 $ 33,525.79 $ 994.46 $ 202.51 $ 34,722.76 $ 25,061.73 $ 945.89 $ 8,464.06 $ 251.08
09 $ 13,901.96 $ 1,375.09 $ 492.52 $ 15,769.57 $ 10,930.57 $ 1,575.61 $ 2,971.39 $ 292.00
08 $ 2,473.55 $ 1,896.66 $ 693.52 $ 5,063.73 $ 1,944.41 $ 2,184.42 $ 529.14 $ 405.76
07 $ 2,013.91 $ 1,788.91 $ 614.82 $ 4,417.64 $ 1,552.05 $ 1,993.47 $ 461.86 $ 410.26
06 $ 2,501.77 $ 2,537.97 $ 793.55 $ 5,833.29 $ 2,150.02 $ 2,974.68 $ 351.75 $ 356.84
05 $ 158.79 $ 187.76 $ 66.28 $ 412.83 $ 138.88 $ 230.34 $ 19.91 $ 23.70
04 $ 205.15 $ 292.03 $ 99.43 $ 596.61 $ 175.82 $ 349.73 $ 29.33 $ 41.73
03 $ 208.11 $ 322.55 $ 79.60 $ 610.26 $ 187.55 $ 370.27 $ 20.56 $ 31.88
01 $ 53.13 $ 83.48 $ 17.01 $ 153.62 $ 48.60 $ 93.54 $ 4.53 $ 6.95
98 $ 169.05 $ 361.76 $ 79.62 $ 610.43 $ 156.29 $ 414.08 $ 12.76 $ 27.30
95 $ 96.61 $ 242.49 $ 50.87 $ 389.97 $ 91.44 $ 280.39 $ 5.17 $ 12.97
91 $ 329.58 $ 985.44 $ 197.25 $ 1,512.27 $ 308.67 $ 1,120.16 $ 20.91 $ 62.53

 
Totals $ 82,644,560.30 $ 38,971.64 $ 28,772.78 $ 82,712,304.72 $ 61,836,213.24 $ 58,777.71 $ 20,808,347.06 $ 8,966.71

     

221



Exhibit B

Lamar Consolidated ISD
Tax Collections

September 1, 2015-August 31, 2016
(Year-To-Date)

Original Adjusted Taxes Penalty & Collection Total Total Taxes
Year Tax Adjustments Tax Paid Interest Fees Payments 12/31/2015
15 $ 173,016,529.71 $ 6,664,803.15 $ 179,681,332.86 $ 88,115,722.64 $ - $ - $ 88,115,722.64 $ 91,565,610.22
14 $ 1,578,079.69 $ 65,595.16 $ 1,643,674.85 $ 393,044.84 $ 82,143.71 $ 88,065.33 $ 563,253.88 $ 1,250,630.01
13 $ 759,119.83 $ 118,181.42 $ 877,301.25 $ 98,388.66 $ 19,154.80 $ 13,449.18 $ 130,992.64 $ 778,912.59
12 $ 693,023.94 $ 118,861.64 $ 811,885.58 $ 50,373.25 $ 7,973.26 $ 4,071.86 $ 62,418.37 $ 761,512.33
11 $ 631,556.26 $ 113,790.01 $ 745,346.27 $ 31,712.50 $ 4,516.63 $ 1,750.28 $ 37,979.41 $ 713,633.77
10 $ 605,391.03 $ 30,039.55 $ 635,430.58 $ (55,927.93) $ 3,001.50 $ 981.72 $ (51,944.71) $ 691,358.51
09 $ 581,353.50 $ 55,564.61 $ 636,918.11 $ 16,392.88 $ 3,116.42 $ 1,220.18 $ 20,729.48 $ 620,525.23
08 $ 587,734.40 $ - $ 587,734.40 $ 4,064.80 $ 3,198.25 $ 889.26 $ 8,152.31 $ 583,669.60
07 $ 191,892.59 $ - $ 191,892.59 $ 3,256.73 $ 2,917.05 $ 680.48 $ 6,854.26 $ 188,635.86
06 $ 127,543.57 $ - $ 127,543.57 $ 3,201.80 $ 3,338.12 $ 1,048.44 $ 7,588.36 $ 124,341.77
05 $ 142,756.89 $ - $ 142,756.89 $ 1,078.71 $ 1,359.82 $ 484.69 $ 2,923.22 $ 141,678.18
04 $ 65,622.10 $ - $ 65,622.10 $ 1,059.28 $ 1,426.27 $ 497.09 $ 2,982.64 $ 64,562.82
03 $ 48,382.85 $ - $ 48,382.85 $ 986.18 $ 1,483.21 $ 370.13 $ 2,839.52 $ 47,396.67
02 $ 32,774.61 $ - $ 32,774.61 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 32,774.61
01 $ 30,373.59 $ - $ 30,373.59 $ 213.98 $ 332.59 $ 67.97 $ 614.54 $ 30,159.61
00 $ 26,210.82 $ - $ 26,210.82 $ 44.00 $ 82.28 $ 18.94 $ 145.22 $ 26,166.82
99 $ 27,765.44 $ - $ 27,765.44 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 27,765.44
98 $ 19,318.70 $ - $ 19,318.70 $ 416.26 $ 887.58 $ 195.57 $ 1,499.41 $ 18,902.44
97 $ 17,316.46 $ - $ 17,316.46 $ 252.81 $ 564.65 $ 122.62 $ 940.08 $ 17,063.65
96 $ 16,372.69 $ (9.38) $ 16,363.31 $ 5.62 $ 1.34 $ 1.04 $ 8.00 $ 16,357.69
95 $ 8,069.69 $ - $ 8,069.69 $ 215.99 $ 540.72 $ 113.51 $ 870.22 $ 7,853.70
94 $ 5,144.31 $ - $ 5,144.31 $ 134.92 $ 350.65 $ 72.83 $ 558.40 $ 5,009.39
93 $ 2,639.02 $ - $ 2,639.02 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,639.02
92 $ 3,823.63 $ - $ 3,823.63 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 3,823.63

91 & prior $ 11,266.58 $ - $ 11,266.58 $ 1,282.34 $ 3,888.69 $ 775.64 $ 5,946.67 $ 9,984.24
 

Totals $179,230,061.90 $ 7,166,826.16 $186,396,888.06 $ 88,665,920.26 $140,277.54 $114,876.76 $88,921,074.56 $97,730,967.80

222



Exhibit C

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
TAX COLLECTION ANALYSIS
PERCENT Y-T-D BY MONTH
FOR CURRENT LEVY ONLY

MONTH 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05

SEPT 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

OCT 0.1% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

NOV 3.2% 2.2% 7.4% 1.9% 2.6% 3.9% 1.9% 1.7% 2.8% 2.1% 1.0% 3.3%

DEC 49.0% 45.3% 45.3% 33.1% 30.2% 33.3% 25.9% 35.4% 31.9% 29.7% 32.7% 16.8%

JAN 82.0% 86.2% 82.9% 82.3% 84.1% 80.7% 80.4% 59.6% 76.4% 73.6% 74.9%

FEB 95.1% 95.5% 95.5% 94.8% 94.3% 93.3% 92.8% 93.5% 93.3% 92.5% 92.3%

MAR 96.8% 97.0% 96.8% 96.4% 96.1% 95.0% 94.8% 95.1% 94.7% 94.3% 93.8%

APR 97.9% 97.8% 97.6% 97.1% 96.9% 96.0% 95.6% 95.9% 95.8% 95.2% 94.8%

MAY 98.2% 98.2% 98.1% 97.9% 97.6% 96.5% 96.4% 96.7% 96.5% 96.1% 95.5%

JUNE 98.6% 98.7% 98.6% 98.3% 98.2% 97.4% 97.2% 97.4% 97.3% 96.8% 96.4%

JULY 98.9% 99.0% 99.0% 98.7% 98.6% 98.0% 97.9% 98.0% 97.8% 97.4% 97.1%

AUG 99.0% 99.2% 99.1% 98.9% 98.8% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 98.2% 97.8% 97.5%

223



Exhibit D

LAMAR CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2015-16 TAX COLLECTIONS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

TAX  YEAR BUDGET COLLECTIONS % OF BUDGET
LCISD TAXES SCHOOL YEAR AMOUNT 12/31/2015 COLLECTED

 
2015 2015-2016 $175,920,949 $88,115,723 50.09%

 
2014 &  Prior 2014-15 & Prior $2,150,000 $550,198 25.59%

TOTAL $178,070,949 $88,665,920 49.79%

224



Exhibit E
LAMAR  CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

TAX COLLECTION REPORT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015

SCHOOL YEAR 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
TAX YEAR 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

COLLECTION YEAR
1 Orig. Levy $ 129,215,668 $ 132,226,943 $ 136,145,655 $ 142,546,726 $ 153,118,133 $ 173,016,530

1 Collections $ 132,086,020 $ 136,117,707 $ 140,561,034 $ 148,220,912 $ 160,220,428 $ 88,115,723
Adj. To Roll     $ 4,579,622 $ 5,417,190 $ 5,652,043 $ 6,929,880 $ 8,680,375 $ 6,664,803

2 Collections $ 1,050,557 $ 915,762 $ 739,542 $ 739,176 $ 393,045
Adj. To Roll $ 53,764 $ (64,337) $ 65,612 $ 242,601 $ 65,595

3 Collections $ 329,317 $ 286,833 $ 315,459 $ 98,389
Adj. To Roll $ 13,438 $ 162,075 $ 445,748 $ 118,181

4  Collections   $ 199,270 $ 308,264 $ 50,373
Adj.  To Roll $ 148,691 $ 518,252 $ 118,862

5 Collections $ 268,598 $ 31,713
Adj. To Roll $ 527,967 $ 113,790

6 Collections $ (55,928)
Adj. To Roll $ 30,040

TOTAL:
COLLECTIONS $ 133,877,833 $ 137,660,279 $ 141,666,408 $ 149,058,476 $ 160,613,473 $ 88,115,723
ADJUSTED TAX ROLL $ 134,569,190 $ 138,373,912 $ 142,427,920 $ 149,837,389 $ 161,864,103 $ 179,681,333

BALANCE TO
BE COLLECTED $ 691,357 $ 713,633 $ 761,512 $ 778,913 $ 1,250,630 $ 91,565,610

ADJ. TAXABLE
VALUE $ 9,861,799,862 $ 9,954,599,625 $ 10,246,244,391 $ 10,779,280,534 $ 11,644,480,611 $ 12,926,249,621

TOTAL % COLLECTIONS 99.5% 99.5% 99.5% 99.5% 99.2% 49.0%
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2015  

TAX RATE 1.36455 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005 1.39005

225



INFORMATION ITEM:  PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 
 

 
Below is a list of invoices that have been approved for payment. 
 
 
Daktronics 
(Natatorium #2)      Application # 1 $        13,186.00 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Fulshear HS)      Application # 18 $   3,834,064.15 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Leaman JHS)      Application # 18 $      980,952.90 
 
Drymalla Construction 
(Transportation Satellite)     Application # 18 $      119,901.40 
 
Gamma Construction 
(Elementary #24)      Application # 2 $      140,372.00 
 
Gilbane 
(2011 Bond Program)     Application # 44 $      191,580.00 
 
Hellas Construction    
(Terry HS - Track)        Application # 1 $      129,328.25 
 
Hellas Construction    
(Terry HS - Track)        Application # 2 $        41,800.00 
 
PBK Architects    
(Elementary #24)        Application # 1 $      305,933.02 
 
Sterling Structures, Inc.    
(Foster HS)         Application # 3 $          1,913.00 
 
Vanir, Rice & Gardner  
(2014 Bond Program)     Application # 6 $      204,900.00 
 
 
 
Resource person: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

 12.A.#3. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

226



 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  REGION 4 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS UPDATE 
 
This agenda item will be on the Board Agenda each month to provide updates on 
Region 4’s progress with Maintenance and Operations. The following indicates action 
that has taken place since the last regular board meeting. 
 
Work Request Summary for December, 2015: 
 

 The Department completed 910 requests 

 The Department received 88 requests for the month   
 
Maintenance: 
 
The Maintenance Department assisted by: 
 

 Hanging a saddle rack in a classroom at George Ranch High  

 Hanging a white board in a classroom at Briscoe Junior High 

 Hanging a new library sign over the library doors at George Junior High 

 Replacing ceiling tiles with new ones in a classroom at Lamar Junior High  

 Regluing the drain to the floor in the kitchen at Wessendorff Middle 

 Replacing ceiling tiles with new ones in an office at Brazos Crossing 

 Replacing a broken basketball rim with a new one in the gym at Foster High  

 Installing backboard pads on the two main goals in the gym at Terry High 

 Installing door sweeps to exterior doors at Ryon Middle 

 Replacing two diffusers in a light fixture in the field house at Foster High 

 Installing two flag holders in a classroom at Foster High 

 Replacing fire extinguishers throughout the school at Foster High  

 Removing the American flag on the stage in the gym and hanging the Santa’s 
work shop back drop at Campbell Elementary 

 Removing an old changing table and installing a new one in a classroom at 
Briscoe Junior High 

 Putting the storage sign back on the wall in the 4th grade pod at Dickinson 
Elementary 

 Installing an outlet cover for under the promethean board in a classroom at 
Huggins Elementary 

 Replacing the water filter and cleaning the ice machine in the teacher lounge at 
Huggins Elementary  

 Cutting floor mats for an office at Brazos Crossing 

 Installing a new pencil sharpener in a classroom at Foster High 

 Repairing a roll up door on the concession stand at Briscoe Junior High  

 Assembling two new basketball goals at McNeill Elementary 

 Unstopping the sewer back up in the kitchen at Lamar High 

 Removing silverware from the toilet in the men’s restroom at Brazos Crossing 

 Replacing the light switch in a classroom at Smith Elementary 

  12.A.#4. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

227



 Repairing the lights in the clinic at Smith Elementary 

 Replacing the intercom system call button at Campbell Elementary 

 Repairing the lockers in the dressing room at Wertheimer Middle 

 Removing a broken piece of a key from a door lock at the Alternative Learning 
Center 

 Repairing the security system at Reading Junior High 

 Repairing the fire alarm system at Briscoe Junior High 

 Repairing the security system at Seguin Early Childhood Center 

 Installing a wooden plaque to the wall behind the stall door in the boys restroom 
at Adolphus Elementary 

 Attaching the hula hoop hooks to the north wall in the gym storage room at 
Adolphus Elementary 

 Repainting the numbered spaces in the front carpool line at Hutchinson 
Elementary 

 Cleaning out the French drain in the playground area at Velasquez Elementary 

 Repairing and repainting the wall in a portable at the Alternative Learning Center 

 Replacing the door sweeps with new ones in the auditorium at Terry High  

 Installing the Christmas back drop on the stage at Bowie Elementary 

 Assembling 12 small trampolines for Frost Elementary 

 Installing a new latch on the handicap stall door in the girl’s restroom at Austin 
Elementary 

 Replacing ceiling tiles with new ones in various locations throughout Pink 
Elementary 

 Removing the greenhouse from in front of the school at McNeill Elementary 

 Replacing a broken toilet seat in the boy’s restroom at Velasquez Elementary 

 Assembling a drying rack in a classroom at Hubenak Elementary 

 Completing the quarterly gate preventative maintenance at Jane Long 
Elementary 

 Moving two metal file cabinets and three wire shelves from Special Needs Center 
to the old gym at Jane Long Elementary 

 Repairing the computer keyboard tray in an office at Bowie Elementary 

 Repainting the doors in the cafeteria at Lamar High  

 Repairing the broken letter strip on the marquee in front of school at Smith 
Elementary 

 Replacing ceiling tiles with new ones in the hallway at Terry High  

 Replacing the battery in the emergency light in a portable at Thomas Elementary 

 Hanging new basketball nets on the goals at Dickinson Elementary 

 Installing three TV brackets to the wall at Satellite Transportation 
 

Energy Management 
 
Energy assisted by: 
 

 Scanning controls of all locations to insure temperature settings are good and 
units are running as scheduled 

 Walking and inspecting the buildings for proper shut-down at night 

228



 Testing new equipment, a Datalogger for assistance in monitoring the climate in 
the facilities 

 Working to schedule the new louver install at the LCISD Natatorium  

 Assisting with boiler inspections district-wide 

 Scheduling boiler inspections for the Fulshear Complex 

 Discussing replacement of the chillers at Campbell Elementary 

 Reviewing the boiler issue at George Ranch High 
 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works: 
 
Custodial, Integrated Pest Control and Lawn Works assisted by: 
 

 Mowing at all elementary campuses 

 Delivering and picking up tables and chairs from the following locations: 

o George Ranch High 

o Terry High 

o Smith Elementary 

o Dickinson Elementary 

o Jane Long Elementary 

o Hutchison Elementary 

 Repairing irrigation leaks on the athletic fields at Foster High  

 Moving risers from Thomas Elementary to Arredondo Elementary 

 Mowing at all of the high school blocks 

 Delivering tables and chairs to Wertheimer Middle and George Ranch High 

 Applying ant treatment district-wide 

 Scheduling pest control services with Bug Man Pest Control district-wide 

 Removing wasps at Jane Long Elementary 

 Providing rodent control at Beasley Elementary, Bowie Elementary, and Terry 
High 

 Removing bats from Austin Elementary 

 Removing yellow jackets from Jane Long Elementary 

 Performing deep cleaning and extra high dusting at Taylor Ray Elementary 

 Setting up for a Parents Night Out event and cleaning up afterwards at Frost 
Elementary 

 Setting up for a Winter Wonderland event and cleaning up afterwards at George 
Ranch High 

 Extracting the carpet in the kindergarten hallway and various classrooms at 
Campbell Elementary 

 Extracting the carpets in several classrooms at Adolphus Elementary  

 Removing water from the carpet due to a hallway water fountain leak at Pink 
Elementary 

 Setting up for a large meeting in the gym and cafeteria at Hubenak Elementary 

 Cleaning up after the Primrose of Greatwood Christmas program at Dickinson 
Elementary  

 Cleaning up after a volleyball tournament at Foster High 

229



 Setting up for a Christmas program and cleaning after at Beasley Elementary 

 Burnishing floors in the gym, cafeteria and all hallways at Taylor Ray Elementary 

 Cleaning after a music event in the theater at Briscoe Jr. High 

 Burnishing floors in the gym, cafeteria and all hallways at Huggins Elementary 

 Extract carpets in a classroom at Smith Elementary 

 Burnishing floors in the gym and cafeteria at Hubenak Elementary 

 Setting up 500 chairs in the gym and cafeteria for a 5th grade program and 
cleaning after at Thomas Elementary 

 Setting up 150 chairs for a Christmas program and cleaning after at Dickinson 
Elementary 

 Setting up for a band concert and cleaning after at George Ranch High 

 Beginning the work on the gym floor repair at Wessendorff Middle 
 

 
Resources: Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 

Aaron Morgan, Director of Maintenance & Operations (Region 4) 
  Hector Gomez, Assistant Director of Operations 
  James Carrillo, Assistant Director (Region 4)   

230



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 1 

  

 
Monthly Report 

2011 Bond Program 
  

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

  

 

EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 BUDGET  COMMITTED  UNCOMMITTED  PAID 

NEW FACILITIES 195,237,324.00  13,138,603.33  32,212,322.94  149,885,997.73 

EXISTING FACILITIES 23,727,447.10  577,574.94  4,621,762.80  18,528,109.38 

LAND 2,918,653.00  1,600.00  294.19  2,916,758.81 

TRANSPORTATION 6,100,779.00  -  836,905.00  5,263,874.00 

TECHNOLOGY 21,168,000.00  17,763.29  2,536,421.63  3,951,362.55 

MISCELLANEOUS -  -  -  - 

        

TOTAL 249,159,203.10  13,735,541.56  40,207,706.56  180,546,102.47 

 

          

  12.A.#5a. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

231



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 2 

  

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Arredondo ES is a new 12 acre 

campus consisting of a 90,700 sf 

building, parking and play areas 

located in Summer Park subdivision in 

Richmond, TX. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Current 2011 Bond Program Projects: 
 

Arredondo Elementary:  
 

 Project Substantial Completion was August 10, 2015. 

 Punch list work is ongoing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

232



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 3 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS is part of 

a new 101 acre campus in Fulshear, 

TX.  It includes a 350,000 sf main 

building, 32,400 sf field house, 

teacher and student parking, separate 

bus drop-off, dual gymnasiums, 

dedicated CTE spaces, competition 

and practice ball fields, tennis courts 

and band practice areas. 

 

Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS, & sitework:  
(Refer to Design Development booklet for floor plans) 

  

Project meetings with PBK, Drymalla, Gilbane, and LCISD are continuing on a bi-

weekly basis. 

 

 The main canopy entrance framing and decking is complete.  

 The main entrance concrete is ongoing. 

 Commons area floor tile is complete.  Ceiling grid and ceiling tile is 

complete. 

 Kitchen appliances have been delivered and are currently being 

installed. 

 All casework is onsite and being installed throughout. 

 Auditorium scaffolding is completely removed and ceiling is installed 

complete with finish paint. 

 The building is dried in and the building air is conditioned.  The 

relative humidity and air temperature is in range for all finishes. 

 Approximately 95% of the site paving is complete. 

 Ductwork is being installed and insulated in the athletics and 

gymnasium areas. 

 Ceiling grid is nearly complete and the ceiling tile is currently being 

installed.  Lighting fixtures near complete throughout the building and 

ongoing. 

 Finish paint is ongoing and spirit colors in the main gym are being 

applied. 

 VCT is onsite, precon meeting was held 1/5/16 and Drymalla has 

released them pending mock up approval. 

 Fire alarm wiring and speaker wire is ongoing. 

 All fire pipe and heads are roughly 95% complete. 

 Installation of hollow metal doors is ongoing. 

 Site sidewalks are ongoing. 

 The tennis courts have been poured out and fencing, and post erection 

is ongoing. 

 Track has been filled and tested and asphalt is complete. 

 The dormers have been set on the roof tops. 

 Site irrigation is ongoing. 

 Athletic Field post and miscellaneous steel is being erected and 

ongoing. 

 Ball field chain link fencing is ongoing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

233



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 4 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Dean Leaman JHS is part of a new 

101 acre campus in Fulshear, TX.  It 

includes a 203,000 sf building, teacher 

and visitor parking, separate bus 

drop-off, competition and practice ball 

fields, dual gymnasiums and dedicated 

CTE spaces. 

 

 

 

Churchill Fulshear (Jr.) HS, & sitework (cont.): 

 

 
 

 
Fieldhouse 

 The Field House exterior sheathing is complete. 

 Plumbing overhead is ongoing. 

 Standing seam roof panels are complete. 

 MEP rough is ongoing and near completion.  Mechanical piping is 

awaiting insulation. 

 CMU walls are installed and awaiting primer and finish paint. 

 

 

 

Dean Leaman JHS 
 

 

 Floor tile in the cafeteria is ongoing.  Fur downs, lighting fixtures, and 

ceiling tile is installed. 

 Ceiling grid, lighting fixtures, and finish painting is ongoing down 

Main Street. 

 Finish painting is ongoing in the athletic areas. 

 Case work is being installed throughout. 

 Gymnasium goalpost and goals are installed. 

 Ceiling grid, light fixtures, and painting are ongoing throughout areas 

D, E, and F. 

 The building is dried in and relative humidity and temperature is in 

range for all finishes. 

 Ceiling grid is installed throughout areas E and D. 

 Window frames and glass are installed in areas A, B, and C. 

 Low voltage cable is being installed in areas E and F. 

 Main canopy entrance is being erected and ongoing. 

 Gyp board fur down framing is complete and rock is painted in the 

cafeteria. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

234



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 5 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
The Traylor Stadium project included 

demolition of existing concession and 

restroom facilities, as well as the 

construction of a new long jump area 

and 3 new restroom/concession and 

ticket booth buildings to serve the 

stadium.  New fencing was installed 

and parking was reconfigured and 

striped.    

 
 

 

 

Traylor Stadium Renovations 

  

Building 1 and 2  

  
 Punch list work has been completed. 

 

Building 3 

 Project Substantial Completion was August 27, 2015. 

 Punch list work is ongoing. 

 

 
 

 

Satellite Transportation Center Phase II:  
 

 The metal building addition framing and wall panels are complete 

 Site paving is complete 

 Installation of heaters and fans is ongoing. 

 Bus canopy columns and canopies are complete. 

 Bus canopy striping is near completion. 

 The Bus Wash is ready for punch list and owner demonstration and 

training is complete. 

 Bus Wash Certificate of Occupancy has been issued. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Miscellaneous Renovations (2015) to Campbell ES, Frost ES, Pink ES, 

Meyer ES, Dickinson ES, Williams ES, Smith ES, Navarro MS, 

Wessendorff MS & Seguin Early Childhood Center:  

 

 Project renovations have been completed and are in the closeout and 

warranty phases. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

235



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 6 

  

 
 

 
 

 

Adolphus Elementary 

 

 
Ag Barn renovations 

 

 
George Ranch HS Shell Build-Out 

 

 
Polly Ryon Middle School 

 

 
Traylor Stadium Track & Turf 

 

2011 Bond Closed Projects: 

 
Adolphus Elementary   
New 90,700 sf elementary school located in Longmeadow Farms Subdivision 

in Richmond, TX.  The campus includes 42 classrooms with Promethean 

boards, gymnasium with stage, music room, library, play areas, teacher and 

visitor parking, and separate bus drop off areas.   

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $995,978.00  

 
  

 

Agricultural Barn Renovations  
The renovation included adding a new 10’ canopy around ¾ of the building, 

added ventilation fans, new men and women restroom facilities, an interior 

storage room, grading and drainage work around the building perimeter, new 

electronic gate software, additional security cameras, and new tarps for all of 

the animal pens. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $59,322.73 
  

 

 

George Ranch High School Build-Out  
The project included the build-out of 14 standard classrooms and 4 science 

labs inside the existing high school building.   

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $1,005,671.00 
  

 

Polly Ryon Middle School  
The project included a new 80,000 sf middle school campus located on the 

existing George Ranch HS complex in Richmond, TX.  The facility includes 

22 classrooms with SMART board technology, a cafeteria with performance 

stage, library, 5 science labs, dedicated fine arts rooms, visitor and staff 

parking, and separate bus drop off areas.   

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $1,091,456.03 
  

Traylor Stadium Track & Turf  

The project included the replacement of the turf and subgrade for the 

competition football field, as well as installation of a new track surface. 
Uncommitted funds as of September1, 2015: $0.00 
  

District Competition Natatorium 
 

The District Natatorium is a new 36,000 sf competition swimming facility 

with an eight lane heated pool, diving well, weight room, classrooms, offices, 

spectator seating and judges stands. The complex is located adjacent to 

Traylor Stadium in Rosenberg, TX. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $513,558.02 

236



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 7 

  

 
BF Terry High School 

 

 

 
George Junior High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Bowie Elementary School 

 

 
Jackson Elementary School 

 

 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2013) to Terry HS, Lamar HS,  

George JHS, Jackson ES & Bowie ES 
 

 

Terry High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included a 6,200 sf addition 

for 2 art rooms and 1 standard classroom; remodel of the CTE areas to include 

2 new PLTW classrooms and shop area; remodel of the existing wood shop to 

include new storage, exterior doors and an added classroom; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop and classroom to include new welding stations and integrated 

oxygen/acetylene manifold system and a new canopy and graphics at the 

campus main entry.  All classrooms received new marker boards and 

homeland security locksets.   Additional project upgrades included resurfacing 

the existing tennis courts. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $600,961.10 
  

  

George Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX): Renovations included new paint 

and graphics in both gyms and floor resurfacing in the competition gym; 

chilled water piping was replaced throughout the school; remodel of the 

existing Ag shop, storage and office areas; additional security cameras were 

added and homeland security locksets were added to all classrooms. 

Additional project upgrades included floor resurfacing and repair in the 

competition gymnasium. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $423,547.02 
  

 

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations to the CTE areas of the 

school included relocation of exhaust systems in the existing Auto-tech shop; 

outfitting of lifts and exhaust for a future auto-tech shop expansion; repair and 

painting of the exterior yard vehicle canopy and fenced enclosure; new 

electronic gate for vehicle storage area; new exhaust hood system in the Ag 

shop and installation of an integrated oxygen/acetylene manifold system. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $13,218.92 
  

 

Bowie Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included 

replacement or modification of existing classroom casework; new classroom 

doors; a new sidewalk from the school to Ruby Street; ceiling tile 

replacement; grading and drainage work and all classrooms received homeland 

security locksets. 

Uncommitted funds as of September1, 2015: $184,421.43 
  

 

Jackson Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations included a 470 sf 

kitchen addition with an office, laundry and restrooms; all flooring was 

replaced in the hallways with ceramic or vinyl tile; an additional canopy was 

installed outside the gymnasium; restrooms were renovated to remove trough 

urinals; various HVAC equipment was replaced; library doors were replaced 

and all classrooms received homeland security locksets. Additional project 

upgrades included new HVAC controls for the entire school. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $658,559.93 

237



Lamar CISD 2011 Bond Program                                                                                                                                                                Monthly Report-Executive Summary 
GILBANE                             January  2016 

  

 Page 8 

  

 

 
Alternative Learning Center 

 

 
Austin Elementary School 

 

 
Foster High School 

 

 
Lamar High School 

 

 
Travis Elementary School 

 

 

Miscellaneous Renovations (2014) to Alternative Learning Center, 

Austin ES, Beasley ES, Foster HS, Lamar JHS, Lamar HS, Taylor Ray 

ES & Travis ES --Closeout of the project is expected in January, 2015.  

 
Alternative Learning Center(Rosenberg, TX): The project included a 2,770 sf 

addition for administrative offices, inspection, security and a clinic, as well as, 

renovations to existing student restrooms, conversion of old offices to 

computer lab and conference areas, and ventilation, exhaust and new wood 

storage for the ag shop.   

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $20,652.94 
  

Austin Elementary School (Richmond, TX): The project included replacement 

of all air handlers; remodel of life skills storage area into a restroom; enclosure 

of existing mop sinks in mechanical rooms and removal/replacement of 

sidewalks around the perimeter of the building to address drainage issues.  

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $131,466.50 
  

Foster High School (Richmond, TX):  Renovations to the Ag shop included 

additional welding stations with exhaust hoods, a new exterior canopy, 

covered material storage areas and installation of an integrated oxygen/ 

acetylene manifold system. 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $59,641.00 
  

Lamar High School (Rosenberg, TX):  This project included replacement of 

two existing cooling towers at the Central plant serving the high school and 

junior high, as well as replacement of the boiler in the Lamar HS Fieldhouse.   

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $13,218.95 
  

Travis Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included a new 

parent drop-off drive and canopy along Avenue K; a new staff parking lot at 

the rear of the school; boiler replacement and tie in of a chilled water loop for 

the HVAC system.   

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $29,923.47 

  
Beasley Elementary School (Beasley, TX):  The project included the 

replacement of all air handlers in the building that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $30,052.00 
  
Lamar Junior High School (Rosenberg, TX):  The project included 

replacement of two boilers that had reached the end of their life cycle.  (no 

photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $18,932.32 
  

Taylor Ray Elementary School (Rosenberg, TX):  Renovations consisted of the 

replacement of student restroom exhaust fans that had reached the end of their 

life cycle.  (no photo) 

Uncommitted funds as of September 1, 2015: $16,764.57  

 

238



239



FM 1093 / Westpark Toll Road

J. Meyer Rd.

FM
 762

FM 762

FM
 7

23

FM 1093

FM 359

FM
 359

FM
 3

59

FM 2759

99

59

59

36

90A
90A

90A

90A

36

Brazos River

36

Spur 529 to HWY 59

Ave. J

Ave. M

FM 1640
Ave. K

Ave. F

W
ar

d

FM
 2

21
8

FM
 2

21
8

DYer

Brooks

Mons Ave.
Airport Ave.

G
ra

eb
er

 R
d.

Reinhard St.

Wilburn St.

Islieb
 Rd

.

Ba
m

o
re

 R
d.

10 mi.
59 FrontaGe Road

Southwest Freeway

To Houston

FM
 2

97
7 

/ 
M

in
o

n
it

e 
R

d
.

B
er

d
et

t 
R

d
. 

C
rab

b
 R

iver Rd. 

SansburY
Riverbrook D

r.

G
reatw

o
o

d
   Pkwy.

M
ac

ek
 R

d. M
ac

ek
 R

d.

Ra
b

b
s 

C
ro

ss
. R

d.

Sh
ad

ow

 Bend Dr.

W
 W

in
di

ng
 B

ro
ok Dr.                 E W

inding Brook D
r.

W
il

li
am

s 
W

ay
 B

lv
d. 

R
an

so
m

 R
d

.

Ran
som

 Rd.

FM
 762

Ave. I

Ave. H

Je
an

et
ta

C
o

le
 A

ve
.

La
n

e 
D

ri
ve

Lam
ar D

rive

H
erndon

D
am

o
n

 S
t.

Ave. N
Ave. N

Lo
ui

se

Reading Rd. 

Ricefield Rd.

Maiden Lane

C
o

lli
n

s 
R

d
. 

M
ab

el
 S

t. 

Jackson St. / Ave. H
Underpass

Jackson Street

Liberty Street

Main Street

9t
h 

St
.

9t
h 

St
.

Brazos River

B
ra

zo
s 

R
iv

er

G
ra

nd
 P

ar
kw

ay

Ave. D

Ave. A

3r
d 

St
re

et

H
ou

st
on

 S
tr

ee
t

Thom
pson Rd.

16 mi 
@Fulshear

Katy - Fulshear Rd.

Pi
tt

s 
Rd

.

Rad
io Lan

e

H
or

ac
e 

M
an

n

8th St.

Fort Street

Austin Street

Mustang Ave.

Bellaire Blvd. 99

1

43

2

3 41

42

4

5

6

7

8

10

9

11

12

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

2938

35

30

31

32

33

34

36

A
D

B

C

M
ason Rd.

Rancho  Bella Pkwy 

21

Lakemont Bend LN.

Farm
er R

d
.

  Skinner Lane
Plantation Drive

Juvenile 
Detention 

Center

Terry Stadium 
& Field House

Traylor 
Stadium

& Natatorium

To Kendleto
n

Foster HS

George Ranch HS 

Lamar Consolidated HS

Terry HS

Briscoe JH

George JH

Lamar JH

Reading JH 

Navarro MS

Ryon MS

Wertheimer MS

Wessendorff MS

Adolphus ES

Austin ES

Beasley ES

Bowie ES

Campbell ES

Dickinson ES

Frost ES

Hubenak ES

Huggins ES

Hutchison ES

Jackson ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

19

20

27

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

29

30

31

A

B

C

D

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Long ES

McNeill ES

Meyer ES

Pink ES

Ray ES

Smith ES

Thomas ES

Travis ES

Velasquez ES

Williams ES

Seguin Early Childhood Center

Alternative Learning Center

Special Needs Center

1621 Place

Fort Bend Alternative School

Development Center

Powell Point

Administrative Annex

Satelite Transportation Center/ 
Site for Secondary Complex #5

Fort Bend County Fairgrounds

George Memorial Public Library

Oak Bend Medical Center

Rosenberg Civic Center

39

40

41

42

Golfview Dr.

Site for secondary Complex #5

13

W
es

t 
 B

el
lfo

rd

Foster HS

George Ranch HS 

Lamar Consolidated HS

Terry HS

Briscoe JH

George JH

Lamar JH

Reading JH 

Navarro MS

Wertheimer MS

Wessendorff MS

Austin ES

Beasley ES

Bowie ES

Campbell ES

Dickinson ES

Frost ES

Hubenak ES

Huggins ES

Hutchison ES

Jackson ES

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

19

20

27

11

13

14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

29

30

31

A

B

C

D

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

Long ES

McNeill ES

Meyer ES

Pink ES

Ray ES

Smith ES

Thomas ES

Travis ES

Velasquez ES

Williams ES

Seguin Early Childhood Center

Alternative Learning Center

Special Needs Center

1621 Place

Fort Bend Alternative School

Development Center

Powell Point

Administrative Annex

Satelite Transportation Center/ 
Site for Secondary Complex #5

Site for Elementary #22

Site for Polly Ryon Middle School 

Fort Bend County Fairgrounds

George Memorial Public Library

Oak Bend Medical Center

Rosenberg Civic Center

39

40

41

42

39

Houston Street

14

12

44

Maintenance
Central Warehouse

45
40

37

HIGH SCHOOLS
  1 Foster High School  832-223-3800
  2 George Ranch High School 832-223-4200
  3 Lamar Consolidated High School 832-223-3000
  4 Terry High School  832-223-3400

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS
  5 Briscoe Junior High  832-223-4000
  6 George Junior High  832-223-3600
  7 Lamar Consolidated Junior High 832-223-3200
  8 Reading Junior High  832-223-4400

MIDDLE SCHOOLS
  9 Navarro Middle  832-223-3700
10 Ryon Middle   832-223-4500
11 Wertheimer Middle  832-223-4100
12 Wessendorff Middle  832-223-3300

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS
13 Adolphus Elementary  832-223-4700
14 Arredondo Elementary  832-223-4800
15 Austin Elementary  832-223-1000
16 Beasley Elementary  832-223-1100
17 Bowie Elementary  832-223-1200
18 Campbell Elementary  832-223-1300
19 Dickinson Elementary  832-223-1400
20 Frost Elementary  832-223-1500
21 Hubenak Elementary  832-223-2900
22 Huggins Elementary  832-223-1600
23 Hutchison Elementary  832-223-1700
24 Jackson Elementary  832-223-1800
25 Long Elementary  832-223-1900
26 McNeil Elementary  832-223-2800
27 Meyer Elementary  832-223-2000
28 Pink Elementary  832-223-2100
29 Ray Elementary   832-223-2400
30 Smith Elementary  832-223-2300
31 Thomas Elementary  832-223-4600
32 Travis Elementary  832-223-2500
33 Velasquez Elementary  832-223-2600
34 Williams Elementary  832-223-2700

DISTRICT FACILITIES/SPECIAL SITES
35 Seguin ECC   832-223-2200
36 1621 Place   832-223-0950
37 Administrative Annex  832-223-0000
38 Alternative Learning Center        832-223-0900
39 Brazos Crossing Admin Building 832-223-0000
40 Common Threads  832-223-0342
41 Development Center  832-223-0000
42 Fort Bend Alternative School 281-239-3431 
43 Fulshear Transportation Center 832-223-0551 
44 Rosenberg Transportation Center 832-223-0289
45 Special Needs Center  832-223-0960

District Map and Directory 
www.lcisd.org

Lamar Junior High

240



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 1 

 
 

 

Monthly Report - December 2015 

 
 

 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Executive Summary 
  

Bond Sale 1 Current Budget Committed  Uncommitted Actuals Paid 

Elementary 24 22,010,055.00 19,658,968.00 2,351,087.00 740,380.00 

Elementary 25 23,770,861.00 954,653.00 22,816,208.00 190,000.00 

Elementary 26 24,959,404.00 1,002,386.00 23,957,018.00 0.00 

FHS Baseball 40,000.00 1,800.00 38,200.00 0.00 

FHS Water Plant 990,000.00 48,000.00 942,000.00 10,000.00 

HVAC Web Controls 1,056,000.00 54,000.00 1,002,000.00 0.00 

LCHS Band Hall 700,000.00 30,000.00 670,000.00 5,000.00 

Pink Elementary- 
Foundation 1,056,000.00 48,000.00 1,008,000.00 48,000.00 

Practice Pool - Foster High 
School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 0.00 

Practice Pool - Fulshear 
High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 0.00 

Practice Pool - George 
Ranch High School 8,855,872.00 491,598.00 8,364,274.00 0.00 

Support Services Center 12,146,000.00 570,240.00 11,575,760.00 282,463.00 

THS Band Hall 700,000.00 30,000.00 670,000.00 5,000.00 

THS Baseball 975,000.00 48,000.00 927,000.00 0.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 1 114,970,936.00 23,920,841.00 91,050,095.00 1,280,843.00 

Bond Sale 2         

Elementary 27 24,959,404.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Elementary 28 26,207,374.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Fulshear 6th Grade School 22,342,493.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Fulshear Shell 3,849,077.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Satellite Ag Barn 3,786,750.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total - Bond Sale 2 81,145,098.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Grand Total 196,116,034.00 23,920,841.00 91,050,095.00 1,280,843.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  12.A.#5b. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

241



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 2 

 
 

ELEMENTARY 24 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW 

 The building pad is in place. 

 Underground utility work in progress. Most of 
the utility piping is onsite. 

 60% of foundation piers are located. 

 Drilling of piers is scheduled to begin in January 
2016. 

 Pier steel fabrication is 60%+ complete. 

 Grade beam forms are about 20% fabricated. 

 69 submittals have been received, including 
pre-cast hollow core planks, site utilities, and 
drilled piers. 24 have been reviewed and 
returned. 

 As of 12/30/15, the construction contract is 
5.9%  complete. 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 Construction Start: October 2015 

 Substantial Completion: November 2016 

 

  

242



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 3 

 
 

PINK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 

 OVERVIEW 
 
Pink Elementary School Repairs 
 

 Currently the Pink Elementary School project 
is in design.  

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 

 Construction: Summer 2016 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

243



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 4 

 
 

SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
The Support Services facility project will 
provide space to expand and relocate 
Purchasing & Materials Management, 
Food Service Support, Maintenance & 
Operations and Graphic Arts 

 OVERVIEW 
 

 The A/E selection process is complete. 
 

o A short list of candidates was presented 
to the Board Facilities Committee. 
 

o Interview presentations were made with 
the Board Facilities Committee. 

 
o PBK Architects was selected at the 

December 17, 2015 Board Meeting. 
 

 Contract preparation for design services is 
ongoing.  

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 

 Programming & Design Start: January 2016 

 Procurement: August 2016 

 Construction Start: October 2016 

  

244



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 5 

 
 

ELEMENTARY 25 

  OVERVIEW 
 

 PBK Contract in place for design of prototype 

Elementary. 

 

 The Firethorne site was selected by the Board in 

December. 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 

 

 Design Start: January 2016 

 Procurement: April 2016 

 Construction Start: June 2016 

 Construction Completion: Fall 2017 

 

PRACTICE POOLS 

George Ranch High School 

Foster High School 

Fulshear High School 

  OVERVIEW 
 

 PBK was selected to design the Practice Pools at 

the December 17, 2015 Board Meeting. 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
  

 Planning & Design Start: January 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

245



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 6 

 
 

BASEBALL SCOREBOARD 

Foster High School 

 

 OVERVIEW 
 

 The District Athletic Director has approved the 
design. 

 The P.O. has been issued to the vendor. 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 

 Construction Start: February 2016 

 Construction Completion: March 2016. 

 

BASEBALL COMPLEX 

Terry High School 

  OVERVIEW  
 

 PBK was selected to design the Terry High 

School Baseball Complex at the December 17, 

2015 Board Meeting. 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 

 Planning & Design Start: January 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

246



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 7 

 
 

BAND HALL ADDITIONS 

Lamar Consolidated High School 

Terry High School 

  OVERVIEW 
 

 VLK was selected to design the Band Hall 

Additions at Lamar Consolidated High School 

and Terry High School at the December 17, 2015 

Board Meeting. 

 

SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 

 Planning & Design Start: January 2016 

 

 

SATELLITE AG BARN #3 

  OVERVIEW 
 

 VLK was selected to design the Satellite Ag Barn 

#3 at the December 17, 2015 Board Meeting. 

 

 A site for the Satellite Ag Barn #3 has not been 

selected. Full design will depend on site selection. 

 
SCHEDULE MILESTONES 
 

 Planning & Design Start: January 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

247



  

 
 

 

 

 

 Page 8 

 
 

 

FUTURE PROJECTS 

  OVERVIEW 
 

 The future projects in the 2014 Bond Program 
will be reported on as they begin: 

 Bond Sale 1 

 
a. Elementary #26 

b. Foster HS Water Plant 

c. HVAC Web-Based Controls 

 

 Bond Sale 2 

 
a. Elementary #27 

b. Elementary #28 

c. Fulshear 6th Grade School 

d. Fulshear Shell Space Build-Out 

 

 

248



INFORMATION ITEM: TRANSPORTATION UPDATE 

PERSONNEL CHANGES: 
During the month of December the following changes were made: 
 Trainees hired:    5 
 Full time drivers hired:   1 
 Bus aides hired:    2 
 Drivers quit or terminated    4 
 
Our employee referral and incentive program for recruiting and retaining new drivers has resulted in 
the following payouts this month. 
 
 Initial Payout                   6 Month Payout 
 New Drivers:  7                 New Driver:    1 
 Referred:    3                 Referred:        1 
 
ACCIDENTS: 
There were four (4) accidents in December.   
 
The department has formed an accident review committee that is reviewing each accident, 
determining whether the accident was preventable or non-preventable, and making 
recommendations to the director on actions to be taken as a result of the accident. 
 
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE: 
The maintenance department responded to a total of 9 breakdowns where the bus needed attention 
or replacement on the road.  
 
The department pumped 19,085 gallons of diesel and 3,890 gallons of gasoline for the month. 
 
ROUTING AND SCHEDULING: 
We have the following routes in operation at the present time. A full ABDE route is one route that 
covers A-morning elementary, B-morning secondary, D-afternoon elementary and E-secondary. 
 
 Full ABDE Routes   124 
 Partial Routes     25 
 Special Needs Routes   33 
 
We are transitioning away from double runs and combining them with existing partial runs as we 
have new drivers come online or where we can through making routing changes. 
 
TRAINING AND OTHER EVENTS: 
No regular training events were scheduled in December, but the department did hold a Christmas 
lunch and optional gift exchange at both locations. 
 
STUDENT DISCIPLINE: 
During the month of November, 312 discipline referrals were submitted.  In December the number 
dropped to 215. We will continue to compare as we get more data in the coming months. This data 
will track each referral and the time of response.   
 
Resource Person:   Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations 
   Mike Jones, Director of Transportation 

  12.A.#6. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

249



 
 
 
 
 

INFORMATION ITEM:  PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDAR  
FISCAL YEAR 2016 - 2017 

 
  
 
 
Attached is the proposed budget calendar for the 2016-2017 school year.  This is 
a tentative calendar and will change if circumstances arise which would warrant 
modification. 
 
 
 
 
 
Resource Person:  Jill Ludwig, CPA, RTSBA, Chief Financial Officer 
           Yvonne Dawson, RTSBA, Budget & Treasury Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.#7. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 
1 

250



PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDAR 
FISCAL YEAR:  2016-17 

 
 

January 2016 
 
Develop budget calendar 

Review and file 2015-16 adopted budget through TSDS 

Review position control 

Begin accumulating data for special allocations 

Provide budget calendar for 2016-17 to Board for 

information - January 2016 

 

February 2016 
 

Update and distribute budget materials to principals 

and budget managers at February K-12 meeting. (Follow 

up with WebEx meetings) 

 
 

March 2016 
 
Refine budget assumptions 

Prepare salary studies and cost projections 

Develop initial revenue and expenditure projections 

Assess current year budgetary status 

Budgets entered into MUNIS by campuses/departments 
   Central Office review and evaluation of data entered by 
   Campuses/departments 
Superintendent/CFO (and other designated individuals) 
meet with Principals/Department Heads to discuss their 
budgets and instructional processes 
First draft of CIP’s submitted for central office review 

 
April 2016 

 
Develop preliminary Debt Service and Food Service Fund  
budgets 

Human Resources Department to finalize staffing allocations 

Receive preliminary property values from FBCAD 

First draft of DIP submitted 

 

 
 
 
 
                    
 

 

 

 

 

                    

 

 
                 
 

                          
 
 
 

 
June 2016 

 
Refine budgets as necessary 
Review district/campus plans and alignment with 
preliminary expenditure budgets 

Refine salary/benefit cost projections 

Receive revised property values from FBCAD 

Board Workshop for Budget (Session #1) 
 
 

July 2016 

Board Workshop (Session #2) 

Receive certified property tax values from FBCAD 

Refine revenue/expenditure budgets (all) 

Calculate estimated actual and rollback tax rates 

 
 

August 2016 
 
Final revenue/expenditure budget adjustments 

Refine all tax rate calculations 
Board Workshop (Session #3) 
Board Workshop (Session #4, if needed) 

Budget notice/hearing/adoption (Board of Trustees)  
Tax rate notice/hearing/adoption (Board of Trustees)  
CIP’s and DIP finalized  

 

 
September 2016 

 

CIP’s and DIP presented to Board 

 
 

October 2016 
 
Fort Bend County Tax Office to mail tax statements 

File 2016-17 adopted budget through TSDS  
 

 
 
     

251



 

INFORMATION ITEM:  POSSIBLE PROJETS FROM AVAILABLE  
2011 BOND FUNDS 

 
The following is a list of projects that could be funded through the 2011 available bond 
funds.  These project budgets have been estimated for budget purposes. 
 
Athletics 
 Traylor Stadium –  Site utility paving under the stands 
    New fencing around the perimeter 
    Replace old auxiliary field house with new 
    $2,200,000 
Maintenance & Operations 

Painting -  Elementary – Austin, Frost, Hutchison, McNeill, Velasquez, and 
Williams 

   Secondary – Briscoe Jr., George Jr., Foster, Terry, and Lamar 
   $1,920,000 
 Carpet Replacement -   
   Williams Elementary, Wessendorff Middle, Foster High, and  

Briscoe Jr. 
$1,125,000 

Energy Projects – These projects will reduce energy consumption.  The chillers 
on this list are past the life cycle that is generated by industry 
standard.  
Chiller replacements for Wessendorff, Travis, ALC, Seguin, Frost, 
and Huggins.  Retrofit parking lot lights districtwide. HVAC and 
lighting controls updates.  
$2,065,000 
 

Huggins Parking and Parent Drop off upgrades. 
   Improvements to the parking and parent pickup/drop-off 
   $560,000 
  
 
Resource Person:  Kevin McKeever, Administrator for Operations   

  12.A.#8. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

252



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INFORMATION ITEM:  TASB 2014 – 2016 ADVOCACY AGENDA 
 

 
TASB’s 2014 – 2016 Advocacy Agenda was amended by the 2015 Delegate Assembly 
on September 27.  This agenda is the culmination of the hard work of school board 
members across the state through Grassroots Meetings in 2014, the Legislative Advisory 
Council meetings throughout the two-year agenda cycle, the resolutions process, and, 
ultimately, the Delegate Assembly.  The TASB Advocacy Agenda represents input from 
trustees in every region of the state.  This agenda will guide the Association’s advocacy 
efforts until the 2016 Delegate Assembly approves the next biennial agenda. 
 
A copy is provided under separate cover. 
 
 
 
 
Resource Person:    Dr. Thomas Randle, Superintendent 
 
 

 
 

 

 12.A.#9. - PLANNING 

BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

253



 
INFORMATION ITEM:  HB 2610 AND BELL SCHEDULES 

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Beginning with the 2016-2017 school year, the minimal instructional time required for 
students will change from days to minutes. 
 
House Bill (HB) 2610, passed by the 84th Texas Legislature, amends Texas Education 
Code (TEC), §25.081, by striking language requiring 180 days of instruction and 
replacing this language with language requiring districts to provide at least 75,600 
minutes of instruction, including intermissions and recess. The bill also allows school 
districts to add minutes as necessary to compensate for minutes of instruction lost due 
to school closures caused by disaster, flood, extreme weather conditions, fuel 
curtailment, or other calamities. 
 
Based on the current 2015-2016 bell schedule, secondary education exceeds the new 
law by approximately 2,000 minutes, while elementary education is roughly 2,000 
minutes below the new law. To be compliant with the law, a bell schedule adjustment is 
required at the elementary level. 
 
This was discussed with District administrators at the November General Staff meeting 
and again at principal meetings in December. The consensus of the group was to 
implement the following: 
 
Elementary Education will adjust from 415 minutes per day to 430 minutes per day, 
while Secondary Education will adjust from 445 minutes per day to 435 minutes per 
day.  
 
CURRENT 2015-2016 BELL SCHEDULE START/END TIMES 
ELEMENTARY: 7:45 AM – 2:40 PM (415 MINUTES) 
SECONDARY: 8:15 AM – 3:40 PM (445 MINUTES) 
 
PROPOSED 2016-2017 BELL SCHEDULE START/END TIMES 
ELEMENTARY: 7:30 AM – 2:40 PM (430 MINUTES) 
SECONDARY: 8:15 AM – 3:30 PM (435 MINUTES)  
 
This proposal will more closely align instructional time for all students, remove the need 
to make-up two bad weather days and allow secondary students to finish their day 
earlier.  
 
 
Resource Persons: Mike Rockwood, Executive Director of Community Relations 
            Leslie Haack, Executive Director of Secondary Education 

  12.A.#10. – PLANNING 
BOARD REPORT 

JANUARY 21, 2016 

254


	January 21 2016 Board Book WITH Closed Session.pdf
	Cover
	Agenda
	Call to order and establishment of a quorum
	Opening of meeting
	Student Reports
	Arredondo Elementary - "Back to Nature"

	Recognitions/awards
	George Ranch High School Football State Champions

	Introductions
	Audience to patrons
	Approval of minutes
	December 15, 2015 - Special Meeting (Workshop)
	Minutes Special Meeting December 15 2015.docx

	December 17, 2015 - Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes Regular Meeting December 17 2015.docx


	Board members reports
	Meetings and events

	Superintendent reports
	Meetings and events
	Information for immediate attention

	Public Hearing - LCISD Accountability Performance Report for 2014 - 2015
	ACTION ITEMS
	Goal: Planning
	Consider ratification of Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Cover.doc
	Quarterly Investment Backup.pdf

	Consider approval of Lamar Consolidated Independent School District Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the 2014 - 2015 year
	Audit.docx

	Consider approval of budget amendment requests
	January 16 Budget Amendments.doc
	January 16 Budget Amendments REVISED 01152016 backup.doc

	Consider ratification of Financial and Investment Reports
	Financial and Investment Reports.docx
	SCHEDULE OF DECEMBER 2015 DISBURSEMENTS.docx
	MUNIS 953 December 2015 Board Copy.xlsx
	Monthly Investment Report.pdf

	Consider approval of resolution approving list of qualified investment brokers/dealers
	Broker Dealer Agenda Item.doc

	Consider approval of donations to the district, including, but not limited to:
	Donations to district.docx
	Hutchison Elementary School
	Polly Ryon Middle School
	Terry High School
	Thomas Elementary School

	Consider approval of Board Calendar for 2016
	Board Calendar.docx

	Consider adoption of 2016 - 2017 Student/Staff Instructional Calendar
	Instructional Calendar.docx
	16-17 Instructional Calendar (FINAL) (00000003).pdf

	Consider approval of resolutions proclaiming:
	Black History Month
	Black History Month Recommendation.doc
	Black History Month Resolution.doc

	Career and Technical Education Month
	CTE Proclamation.doc
	CTE Proclamation Resolution.pdf

	School Counselor Week
	School Counselors Week Recommendation.docx
	School Counselors Week Resolution.docx


	Consider approval of nomination of candidate for position on the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) Board of Directors
	Candidate for TASB Board of Directors.docx
	CAndidate for TASB Board of Directors letter.docx
	Nominations Instructions Sheet 10C2016.docx
	Form A Nomination Form 10C2016.docx
	Form B Biographical Sketch Form 10C2016.docx
	Form C Director Candidate Questionnaire 10C2016.docx

	Consider designation of Gulf Coast Area Association of School Boards' (GCAASB) Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee
	GCAASB Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee.docx.doc
	GCAASB Positively Promoting Public Schools Committee backup.docx

	Consider adoption of the Dean Leaman Junior High School mascot and school colors
	Dean Leaman School Mascot and Colors.docx

	Consider approval of chiller replacement for Campbell Elementary School
	CHILLER REPLACEMENT AT CAMPBELL ELEMENTARY.doc
	Chiller Replacement Quote.pdf

	Consider approval of traffic engineering study for the new Elementary #25
	Traffic Engineering Study for Elem 25.docx
	Traffic Study Proposal for LCISD ES 25 backup.pdf

	Consider approval of geotechnical study for the new elementary #25
	Geotechnical Study for Elem 25.docx
	Geotechnical ES No 25 backup.pdf


	Goal:  Personnel
	Consider approval of new appraisers for teaching staff, 2015-2016 school year
	New Appraisers 1 21 16.docx



	INFORMATION ITEMS
	Goal: Planning
	Board Policies for First Reading
	Policies Agenda Cover Sheet.docx
	Update 102.pdf
	Update 103.pdf

	Tax Collection Report
	Tax Collections information item 12312015.doc
	TAX COLLECTIONS DECEMBER 2015.xlsx

	Payments for Construction Projects
	Payments for Construction Projects.docx

	Region 4 Maintenance and Operations Update
	Region 4.docx

	Bond Update
	2011
	Monthly Report-January 2016.docx
	Schedule FOR MONTHLY REPORT_2-15 (00000002).pdf
	district-map-FOR MONTHLY REPORT.pdf

	2014
	2014 Bond Program Monthly Report VRGJV FINAL.docx


	Transportation Update
	Transportation Update .docx

	Proposed Budget Calendar
	Budget Calendar 2016-17 cover only.doc
	2016-17 BUDGET CALENDAR.doc

	Possible projects from available 2011 bond funds
	Projects from available 2011 funds.docx

	TASB 2014 - 2016 Advocacy Agenda
	TASB 2014 2016 Advocacy Agenda.doc

	HB 2610 and Bell Schedules
	HB2610 and Bell Schedules.docx



	CLOSED SESSION
	Adjournment to closed session pursuant to Texas Government Code Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.074, and 551.082, the Open Meetings Act, for the following purposes:  (Time___________________)
	Section 551.074 - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.
	Personnel Employment.pdf
	Approval of personnel recommendations for employment of professional personnel
	Employed 1 21 16.docx
	Resume-Salas-Saenz.pdf

	Employment of professional personnel (Information)
	January 21 Employed Only.docx

	Employee resignations and retirements (Information)
	January 21 Resigned Only.docx

	Superintendent's Evaluation and Contract

	Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property
	Land

	Section 551.071 - To meet with the District's attorney to discuss matters in which the duty of the attorney to the District under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with the Open Meetings Act, including the grievance/complaint hearing.
	Any item listed on the agenda
	Discuss pending, threatened, or potential litigation, including school finance litigation







